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DEPUTY CLERK

HARRISONBURG DIVISION, W.D. of VA
IN THE UM TED STATES bISTRICT POIJRT
FOR THE W ESTERN DJSTRICT OF VIRGINIA

H ARRISONBURG DIW SION
M ARCH 2017 SESSION

UM TED STATES OF AM ERICA criminal No. 5:17-CR-O 0O Q

BEAM  BROS. TRUCO G  INC.,
BEAM  BROS. HOLDG G

CORPORATION LLC,
GERALD C. BEAM ,
GARLAND W . BEAM ,
SHAUN C. BEAR  and
M CKOLAS KOZEL

Title 18, United States Code, jj 2(a), 24b)
Title 18r United States Code, j 371
Tiile 18, United States Code, j 100j
Title 18, United States Code, jj 1343, 1349
Title 18, United States Code, j 1519
Title 18, United States Code, jj 19561% 1957

In Violation of:

I N D I C T M  E N T

The Grand Jury chapes that at all times material to this Indice ent:

Introdaction

Beam Bros. Truckinm Inc.

1. Defendant BEAM BROS. TRUCKING, m C. (<KBEAM TRUCIUNG'') was a

rivately held trucking company headqum ered and with its principal place of business in VountP

Crawford, Virginia in the W estem District of Virginia. BEAM TVUCIUNG'S primary business

was the hauling of mail under contracts with the United States Postal Serdce (tKUSPS''). Over the

past ten years USPS paid BEAM  TRUCKING m ore than half a billion dollars to transport m ail.
' . 

. 

jZON LLC (CtBEAMDefendant BEAM BROS
. HOLDING CORPOM  ,

. i

HOLDING'') wms the sole owner of BEAM TRUCKW G.

Defendants GERALD C. BEAM UGERALD BEAM'') and GARLAND W. BEAM

(KCGARLAND BEAM'') were the primary owners of BEAM HOLDW G. GERALD BEAM was
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the President and Chief Executive Om cer of BEAM TRUCKW G, and GARIAND BEAM  was

its Vice-president and Chief Operating Officer. Defendant SHAUN BEAM  was BEAM
l

TRUCKW G'S Operations Manager, and Defendant NICKOLAS KOZEL (QQKOZEL') was its

Chief Financial Oflk er.

United States Postal Service

The USPS is an independent agency of the United States; explicitly authorized by the

United States Constim tion and responsible for prpviding pèstal sçrvice in the United States. To

execute its mission, the USPS entered into contracts with private motor carriers (KKmotor cnrriers'')

to provide ground transportation and services related to the transportation of mail Cmail

contracts'')

Each m ail conkact required the motor carrier to, among other things:

a. Protect and safeguard the mail 9om loss, theft, or damage and to prevent

unautholized persons from having access to the'm ail;

b. To comply with a11 applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations;

To faithflllly discharge al1 duties and obligations imposed by a11 applicable

federalp state and local laws and regttlations; and

To aclmowledge and certify under penalty of 1aw that it would comply w1t11 the

provisions of the M cNnm ara-o'llara Service Contract Act of 1965, 41 U.S.C.

jj 351-358, and its implementing regulations (K:SCA'').

The USPS would not award a m ail contract to a m otor carrier who did not agree to these standard

provisions.

W hile each mail contract speciled the tim e of pick-up 9om and delivery to postal

facilities, the motor cnnier was solely responsible for ensuring that each trip/route driven by a
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m otor carrier's ddvers wms set up, scheduled and staFed so that the ddvers could comply witll all

applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

Federal M otor Carrier Safetv Adlninistration
and Federal M otor Carrier Safet.v Reeulations

The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Adminiskation (cFMCSA''I, is an administration.

IKDOT'') responsible for regulatmk g alldof the United States Depnrtment of Transportation (

providing safety oversight of compnnies operating commercial motor vehicles (&<CMVs''). Its

mission is to reduce crashes, injuries and fatalities involving CMv's and buses. Through powers

delegated to it by the Secretary of Transportation, the FM CSA issues and enforces safety

regulations to prombte the safe operation of CM VS, to minimize dangers to the health of operators

of CM vs and other em ployees whose emplom ent directly affects m otor cnnier safety, and to

enstlre increased compliance w1t.h traflic laws and with the CM V safety and health regulations and

standards prescribed 'under the law.

(delegating authorities vested in the Secretary of Transportation to the FM/SA Administrator).

The United States Conpess specifcally directed that the FM CSA'S highest priority is çithe

furtheruce of the llighest devee of safety in motor cnnier transportation.'' 49 U.S.C. 5 1 1309.

8. To implem ent this directive, the FM CSA prescdbed highway safety regulations, 49

C.F.R. Parts 350-399 ('TMCSA Safety Regtllations'). The FMCSA Safety Regulations impose a

49 U.S.C. jj 31131, 31 136(a)', see also, 49 U.S.C. j 1.87

duty on al1 m otor canier employers and employees to tGbe knowledgeable of and comply with''

FMCSA highway safety regulations. 49 C.F.R. jj 390.3(e)(1), 392.1, and 396.1. In addition, the

FM CSA Safety Regulations malw it clear that whenever a duty or prohibition is imposed upon a

driver, ttit shall be the duty of the motor carrier to require observance of such duty or prohibition.''

49 C.F.R. j 390.1 1. 'I'he FMCSA Safety Regulations also wnrn that ::Ea) person who violates the

rules ... may be subject to civil or cn'minal penalties.'' 49 C.F.R. 5 390.37.
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9. Under the FM CSA Safety Regulations:

a. KçM otor carrier'' means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or

passengers for compensation or aperson who provides transportation ofproperty

b mmercial m otor vehicle not for compensation. 'I'he tennor passengers, y co ,

includej a potor carrier's agents, offcers and representatives as well as

employees responsible forhiring, supervising, training, assir ing, or dispatching

of drivers and employees concerned with the installation, inspection, and

maintenance of motor vehicle equipment and/or accesspries and carly person

engaged in a business a/ecting interstate commerce who owns or leases a

comm ercial motor vehicle in cozmection with that business, or assigns

employees to operate it.'' 49 C.F.R. j5 390.5, 390.57) 49 U.S.C. 5 13102414),

(15).

b. K'Commercial motor vehicle'' includes tGany self-propelled or towed motor

vehicle used on a highway ill interstate comm erce to transport pmssengers or

property when th4 vehicle. . .has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross

. combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, -

of 4,536 kg (l0a001 pounds) or morea whichever is reater, and a ç'highway>'

includes iKalzy road, street, or waya whether on public or private propertya open

to public travel.'' 49 C.F.R. j 390.5.

c. ç'No person shall aid, abet, encourage, or reqtlire a m otor carrier or its employees
. 

'

to violate ...'' any FM CSA Safety Regulations. 49 C.F.R. j 390.13.

d. tW o motor carrier, its agents, offcers, representatives, or employees shall m ake

or cause to make .. .. (a2 âaudulept or intentionally false entry on any . . . record

required to be used, completed, or retnined, to comply with any requirem ent of

yjpage
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...'' the FM CSA Safety Regulations. 49 C.F.R. j 390.35. This applies to CM V

l iver tecords of duty stattls required to be completed and m nintained by 49

C.F.R. j 390.8.

e. SiEvery comm ercial m otor vehicle must be operated in accordance with the laws,

ordinances, and regulations of thejuriséction in which it is being operated.'' 49

C.F.R. j 392.2.

f. GWo driver shall operate a commercial motor veiicle, and a motor cairier shall

not require or permit a driver to operate a copnmercial m otor vehicle, while the

dn'ver's ability or alertness is so impaired, or so likely to becope impnired,

through fatigue, illness, or any other cause, as to m ake it unsafe for him/her to

begin or continuç to operate the commercial motor vehicle.'' 49 C.F.R. j 392.3.

g. ç'No motor carrier shall schedule a nm nor permit nor require the operation of

any commercial m otor vehicle between points in such period of tim e as would

necessitate the commercial m otor vellicle being operated at speeds greater thm1

those prescribed by the jllrisdictions in or tkough which the commercial motor

vehicle is being operated-'' 49 C.F.R. j 392.6.

h. ddEvery motor cnrrier shall require its diivers to report, and every driver shall

prepare a report ill writing at the completion of each day's work on each vehicle

operated ... The report shall cdver at least the following' parts and accessories:

(i) Service brakes, including kailer brake connections; (ii) Parking brake; (iii)

Steering mechanism; (iv) Lighting devices and reflectors; (v) Tires; (vi) Horn;

(vii) Windshield wipers; (viii) Rear vision mirrors; (ix) Coupling devices; (x)

Wheels and rims; (xi) Emergency equipment.'' 49 C.F.R. j 396.1 1k This

inspection and report is often referred to ms the lGpost-trip inspection.''
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RBefore driving a motor vehide, the driver shall: (a) Be satisfed that the motor

vehicle is in safe operating condition; (b) Review the last driver vehicle

inspection reporq and (c) Sign the report, only if defects or defciencies were

noted by the driver who prepared the report, to acknowledge that the driver has

reviewed it and that there is a certifcation that the required repairs have been

perlbrmed.'' 49 C.F.R. j 396.13.

j. No commercial motor vehicle shall be driven unless the driver is satisfied that

the following parts and accessories are in good working order: service brakes

(includingtrailer brake connections), parking (hand) brake, steering mechanism,

lighting devices 'and reflectors, tires, horn, windsllield wipers, rear-vision mirror

or mirrors and coupling devices. 49 C.F.R. j 392.7.

referied to as a t:pre-trip inspection.''

'Fhis inspection is often

10. To fulfll its safety mission, as part of its safety regulations, the FM CSA resd cts the

holzrs of serdce for CMV drivers in 49 C.F.R., Pal't 395 (ETMCSA H0S safety regulations').

Under the FMCSA HOS safety regulations (49 C.F.R. 5 395.3) no motor carrier Ktshall penuit or

require'' any driver used by it to drive a property-carréng CM V, nor shall any such driver drive a

property-carrying CM V tmless the driver complies with the following requirements:

(l) Start of work shift. A driver may not drive without frst taking
10 consecutive hotlrs off duty;

(2) l4-hour period. A driver may drive only during a period of 14
consecutive hotlrs a/er coming on duty following 10 consecutive
hours off duty. 'I'he driver may not drive after the end of the l4-
consecutive hotlr period without flrst tnking 10 consecutive houzs
off duty; and

(3) Drie g time. A driver may drive a total of l l hotlrs during the
l4-hotlr period specified gabove).
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l l . In addition, no motor cnnier shall Gipermit or require'' a CM V driver to diive a

property-carrying CM V for any period after having been on duty 70 hotlrs in atly period of 8

consecutive days if the motor cnrrier operates CMVS every day of the week. 49 C.F.R. j 395.3(18.

The FM CSA HOS safetyregulations require m otor cnrliers and CM V drivers to make

and retain a true and accurate written or eleckonic record of duty stams (also lœown as ''driver

logs, Etpaper logsy'' çtelectronic logs'' or ''elogs'') that includes the time each CMV driver spent

trriving,'' ''On-duty not driving'' (also lmown as 6ç()n-Duty'') in the çKsleeper Birth '' or K6off-

Duty'' for each 24-hotlr period. 49 C.F.R. jj 395.8, 395.15.

13. The FMCSA HOS safety regulations defne K'Driving time'' (also known as

trriving'') as ttall time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation.''

49 C.F.R. j 395.2.

14. The FM CSA HOS safety regulations delne tzon-duty time'' lo include çtalltime from

' the tim e a (Iriver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to work tmtil the time the ddver
' 

k d a1l responsibility for performing work'' It ftrther describes, in relevahtis relieved from wor an

part, on-duty tim e to include'.

a. All tim e at a plant, terminal, facility, or other property of a m otor canier or
' 

i tl d tmless the drivershipper, or on any public property, waiting to be dispa c e ,

has been relieved from duty by the motor cnrrier;

b. Al1 time inspecting, servicing, or conditioning any comm ercial motor vehlcle

at any tim e;

. . '

All dnving tim e as defined in the term driving time;

All time in or on a commercial motor vehicle, other than time spent resting in

or on a parked vehicle or tim e spent resting in a sleeper berth;
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e. A11 time loading or llnloading a commercial motor vehicle, supervising, or

assisting in the loading or unloading, attending à, commercial motor vehicle

beipg loaded or tmloaded, remaining in readiness to operate the commercial

motor vehicle, or in giving or receiving receipts for shipm ents loaded or

unloaded;

A11 time repairing, obtaining assistance, or remaining in attendance upon a

disabled commercial m otor vehicle;

g. A11 time spent providing a breath sample pr llrille snmple;

h. Performing any other work in the capacity, employ, or service oll a motor

carrier' and

Performing any compensated work for a person who is not a m otor canier.

49 C.F.R. j 395.2.

l5. A m otor caniermaypermit driving a CM V while not on duty only forpurelypersonal

use under very limited cirolmstanéesa such as to drive Rshort distances from a dliver's en route

lodgings (such as en route terminals or motels) to restaurants in the vicinity of such lodgings.''

This would be shown on the driver's record of duty status As Irff-Duty time'' (sometimes this is

refen'ed to as tioff-Dut.y Driving'l. A driver may only drive a CMV while itoff-Duty Driving''

when the driver is completely relieved from a1l work or any responsibility for perform ing work.

In addition, çr ff-lluty Driving'' may never be used if the CM V is carrying any cargo. 49 C.F.R.

j 395.8 (Regtllatory GuidNce for 49 C.F.R. j 395.8, Question 26, 62 Fed. Reg. 16,370, 16,426

(April 4, 1997)-

16. Every CM V driver is required to certify that all entries oll lzis/her record of duty stams

were trtze and correct. 49 C.F.R. 95 395.84947), 395.151). Each driver is required to keep a copy

Case 5:17-cr-00007-MFU   Document 1   Filed 03/16/17   Page 8 of 61   Pageid#: 8



of his/her record of duty stahzs for each day and the Kiprevious 7 consecutive days which shall be

in his/her possession and available for inspection when on duty.'' Each m otor caaier is required

to keep a1l driver records of duty status and all supporting doolm ents for each driver it employed

for a period of K'not less than six months.'' 49 U.F.R. j 395.84k).

The m otor canier has primary responsibility for ensuring compliancç with the

FM CSA Safety Regulatiohs with regard to its own employees. 'l'he FM CSA Safety Regulations

require that whenever a duty or prohibition is imposed on a driver, ttit shall be the duty of the motor

carrier to require o' bservance of such duty or prohibition.'' ln additiona the FM CSA HOS safety

regulations specifcally require that ttno motor canier shall permit or requke any driver'' to violate

the FM CSA HOS safety regulations. 49 C.F.R. jj 390.1 1, 395.3.

18. The FM CSA enforces the FM CSA Safety Regulations by conducting onsite motor

carrier compliance investigations as well as through roadside compliance inspections. Both onsite

motor cnrlier ipvestigations and roadside compliance inspections depend upon m ze, correct, and

complete driver records of duty stams and other records to enstlre compliance with the FM CSA

Safety Regulations, including the FM CSA HOS safety regulations.

19. The FM CSA has the authority to impose significant penalties for a driver's violation

of the FM CSA'j Safety Regulations, including the FM SCA'S HOS safety regulations, including

placing the driver out of service, imposing lnes, issuing advçrse safety ratings, and prohibiting

the m otor carrier from operating a CM V. A driver or motor cartier who fails to complete or

preserke records of duty status eni es, or who makes a false record of duty status entries related

to a driver's duty activities may br prosecuted for a criminal violation. .49 C.F.R. jj 390.37,

395.8($.

I
Iy .
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20. The defendants were aware of both the FM CSA'S onsite motor canieç investigations,

roadside compliapce inspections, arld the need for true, correct, and complete driver records of

duty status and other records to conduct these enforcement activities.

2l. ln 2004, 2007 and 2010, the FM CSA conducted onsite compliance

investigations/reviews of BEAM TRUCKING for violations of the FMCSA Safety Regulationsy

including violations of the FM CSA HOS safety regulations.

Service Contract Act/n ir Labor Standards Act
d Compensation for iEHours W orked'', an

22. The SCA requips contractors and subcontractors performing services tmder contracts

w1t11 the United States government in excess of $2,500 to pay their employees for each hour or

portion of all hour worked at a ràte z!o less th%  a prevailing minimllm wage rate as determ ined by

the United States Depnrtment of Labor (ttDOL''). 41 U.S.C: 5j 6701-6707,' 29 C.F.R. j 4.151.

The SCA applies to a1l service employees working on or in connection with the contact, either

performing the specifc services called for by its terms or ill pedbrming other duties necessary to

the petformance of the contract. 29 C.F.R. j 4.l5U. The SCA specifically applies to tmck drivers

engaged in Rmail hauling.'' 29 C.F.R. j 4.l30(a)(31).

23. The SCA requires emplo#ers to compute the hours worked by employees tmder the

contract in each workweek. 29 C.F.R. j 4.178. fKln general, the hours woiked by an employee

include al1 peribds in which the employee is suffered or permitted io work whether or not required

to do so, and al1 time during which the employee is required io be on duty or to be on the employer's

premises or to be at a prescribed workplace.'' The regulation further directs that an employer must

apply the principles set forth in the Fair Labor Standards Act, (<TLSA'*), 29 U.S.C. jj 201-219

and 29 C.F.R. Part 785 CFLSA regtllationsn), which include the requirement that K'raqn employer

may not arbitrarily fail to cotmt as hotlrs worked any parq however small, of the employee's fxed
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or ascertainable period of time he is regulazly required to spend on duties assir ed to him.n 29

C.F.R. j 785.47.

The FLSA regulations, applicable to contractors and subconkactors subject to the

SCA, include:

a. W aiting time, is considered to be Kton-duty'' aud are u predictable periods of

inactivity, usually of short dtlration, in which the employee is unable to use the

time for his/her own purposes because it belongs to and is controlled by the

employer. 29 C.F.R. j 785,15.

b. Kr fflduty'' refers to periods during which an employee is completely relieved

from duty, and the period is long enough to enable him/her to use the time

effectively for his/her own purposes. An employee is not completely relieved

âom duty and cannot use the time effectively for his/her own purposes tmless

he/she is defnitely told in advance that he/she may leave thejob and that he/she

will not have to commence work tmtil a defmitely specified iotlr has nrrived.

29 C.F.R. j 785.16.

The following exnmple is specifically applicable to tnzck drivers:

A truci driver who has to wait at or near the job site for goods to be

loaded is working during the loading period. If the driver reaches his

destination and while awaiting the retllrn trip is required'to take care of

his employer's property, he is also working while waiting. ln both cases

the employee is engaged to wait. W aiting is an integral part of the job.

On the other hand, for example, if the tnzck driver is sent from

W ashington, DC to New York City, leaying at 6 a.m. and arridng at 12

noon, and is completely and specifkally relieved from al1 duty until 6
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p.m. when he again goes on duty for the retllrn trip the idle time is not

working time. He is waiting to be engaged. 29 C.F.R. j 785.16.

d. Rest periods of short duzation nmning from 5 minutes to about 20 minutes, are

common in industry and must be cotmted as hours worked. 29 C.F.R. j 785.18.

e. Bona 5de mealperiods, in whichthe employee is completelyrelieved fmm duty

for the purpose of eating regular meals are not worktime. An employee's meal

period must be counted as tim e worked if the employee is t'required to perform

any duties, whether active or h-iactive, while eating.'' Bona ;de meal periods
N

do not include coffee breaks or time for snacks since these are rest periods and

must be colmted as time worked. 29 C.F.R. # 785.19.

An emplöyee who is required to be on duty for less than 24 holzrs is working

even though he/she is permitted to sleep oi engage in other personal activities

when not busy. 29 C.F.R. j 785.21.

g. W ork not requested but suffered or petmitted is work time, because 'tlze

employer u ows or has reason to believe that the employee is continuing to

work. 29 C.F.R. j 785.1 1.

h. Work perlbrmed away from the premises or the job sitem or even at home is

work time if the employer lmows or has reason to believe that the work is being

perfprmed, 29 C.F.R. j 785.12.

25. The SCA also requires contractors and subconkactors performing services under

contracts with the United States goyernment to pay certain fringe benefits to employees for the

frst forty hours worked in each pay period. 41 U.S.C. j 6703.lt also requires that hourly wages

and fringe benefits be paid tGpromptly and in no event later than ohe pay period following the pay

period in which they are earned.'' 29 C.F.R. j 4.l65(a)(1).
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26. The SCA also requires a contractor and subcontractors to maintaina for thrèe years,

certain records, lcluding time sh. eets showing the ifnllmber of daily and weeldy hotlrs so worked

by each employeev'' that must be made available for inspection by representatives of the W age and

Hour Division of the Employment Standards Admirlistration of the DOL. 29 C.F.R. jj 4.6(g)(l),

4.185.

CW  contractor has an affirmative obligation to enstlre that its pay practices are in

compliance witlz the ... ESCN , and cnnnot itself resolve questions wllich arise, but rather must

seek advice from the Depnrtment of Labor.'' 29 C.F.R. j 4.188(b)(4).

28. The DOL (W age and Hollr Division) conducts compliance investigations to ensure

that employers compensate their employees as required by the SCA. ln conducting its compliance

investigations, the DOL relies upon the availability of trtle, accurate, and complete time sheets.

29. The defendants were aware of the DOL (W age ànd Hour Division) compliance

investigations arld the need for true, accm ate, and com plete time sheets because in 1991 and 2001,

investigators conducted signifcant onsite compliance investigations of BEAV TRUCIUNG for

underpaying its CM V drivers in violation of the SCA.

COUNT ONE

(Conspiracy to Obstruct a Lawful Function of Government)

Pazagraphs l through 29 of this indictment are re-alleged and incorporated 'by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

Beginning as early as in or about June 1999, the exact date being llnknown to the

Grand Jury, and continuing to on or about the date of this indic% ent, in the W estern District of

Virginia and elsewhere, the defendants, BEAM  BROS. TRUCKING  INC., BEAM  BROS.

HOLDING CORPOM TION LLG  GEM LD BEAM , GARLAND BEAM , SHAIJN BEAV

NICKOLAS KOZEL did knowingly and willfully conspke, combine, confederate, alld agree
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together and with each other and with other individuals both known and lmknown to the Grand

Jury, to degaud the United States for the purpose of impeding, im pairing, obstnlcting, and

defeating the lawful Government flmctions of:

'fhe DOT and thè FM CSA in prom oting the safe operation of CM vs,

minimizing the dangers to the health of CM V drivers, and ensllring increased

çompliance w11 traffic laws and FM CSA Safety Regulations;

b. 'l'he DOL in accomplishing its m ission to enstlre that covered employées are

properly paid for a1l hours worked under the SCA, the FLSA and their related

regulations (KYCA/FLSA'I' and

The U SPS in obtaining the trapsportation and delivery of the mail by motor

caniers who would (l) operate legally by complying with a1l applicable federal,

state and local laws and regtllations, and faithfillly discharge a1l duties and

obligations imposed by all applicable federal, state and local laws and

regulations; including the FM CSA safety compliance regulations and the

SCA/FLSA and (2) not impede, impair, obstnzct its right to havé its business

and its afairs, and particularly the process of bidding and awarding of contracts

and conlact renewals for the ground transportation of màil, conducted honestly

and impartially, 9ee from cornzption, âaud, dishonesty, unlawful impairment

and obstruction.'

M anner and M eans

32. The defendants and their co-conspirators carried out the objects of the conspiracy b' y

various means, at various tim es, including:
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a. Aiding, abetting, encouraging, requiring and permitting BEAM TRUCIUNG

employees to violate the FM CSA Safety Regulations, including, but not limited

to, the FM CSA HOS safety iegulations;

b. M aking trip/route schedules for BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers and CM V

drivers of its sub-contractop that could not be legally completed within the

FM CSA HOS safety regùlations as scheduled;

Making trip/route schedules for BEAM TRUCKING CM V drivers and CM V

drivers of its sub-contractors that aided, abetted, encom aged, required and

permitted such drivers to violate the FM CSA HOS safety regulations;

d. Aiding, abetting, encouraging, requiring and perm itting BEAM  TRUCIUNG

CM V drivers and other employees to m ake false statements on the drivers'

records of duty stams;

e. Aiding, abetting, encouraging, requiring and perm itting BEAM  TRUCKING
. '

CM V drivers to exceed the legal speed limit to make it falsely appear on their

records of duty status that the trips/routes had been completed in compliance

with the FM CSA HOS safety regulations;

Aiding, abetting, encollraging, requiring and perm itting BEAM  TRUCKW G

CM V drivers to falsify their records of duty status by:

(1) Falsely recording their duty status as Roff-Duty'' when in fact their tnle

status was ''On-Duty'' while performing work under the mail contracts,

including pre-trip and/or post-trip inspections of their lactors/trailers and

required paperwork;

(2) Falsely recording their duty status as K'Off-Duty Driving'' when in fact

their true status was t'Drivingi''
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(3) Failing to sign onto or to sign off of the eleckonic record of duty status

system so that their records of duty status would falsely appear to be ttoff-

Duty'' when their drivers' tnze stat'us was tr riving'' and/or tr n-Dutyi''

(4) Falsely recording their duty status as f'Off-Duty'' when in fact their true

duty status was <lon-Duty'' and/or KD riving''' and5

(5) Falsely certifying that their record of duty status was accmate when in

fact it was not accttrate.

g. ' M anipulating the electronic Record of Duty Status system to m nlce it falsely

appear that BEAM  TRUCKW G CM V dtivers were 'r ff-Duty'' or K'On-Duty''
. /'

. 1

when in fact their trae stattls was ç'Drivingp'' and to make it falsely appear that

the driversw ere tr ff-Duty'' when itl fact their% e status was Er n-Duty'' and/or

tGDriving'''

h. Aiding, abetting, encom aging, requiring and permitting BEAM  TRUCKm G
. 

'

CM V drivers to operate CM vs while their driving ability and alertness were so

impaired and likely to become impaired tluough fatigue, illness, and any other

cause, as to make it tmsafe for the CIMV drivers to begin or continue to operate

the commercial m otor vehicle;

Failhg to enstlre that BEAM  TRUCIUNG employeés comply w1t11 a1l FM CSA

Safety Regtllations;

Aiding, abetting, encouraging, causing and requiring BEAM  TRUCKm G

CM V drivers to falsify their time sheets to report fewer hours worked than they

actually worked, in violation of the SCN FLSA and the m ail contracts;

k. Aiding, abetting, encouraging, causing and reqlliring BEAM  TRUCKW G

CM V dzivers to falsify their time sheets to report fewer hotlrs worked than they
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acttlally worked by instructing the drivers that their time sheets should match

the false records of duty stams, in violation of SCA/FLSA and the màil

contracts-

1. Falsely and fraudulentlyrepresenting to BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers thpt

they were entitled to be paid only for a pre-set flxed amount of time, often

referred to as tGstandard hotlrs,'' for completing a trip/mute, even if the trip/route

to'ok pore time to complete than the Rstandard hotlrs,'' and even when the

dzivers were paid less than theywere entitled to be paid tmder the mail contacts

and the SCA/FLSA;

m . Falsely and gaudulentlyrepresenting to BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers that

they were permitted only to report tçstandard hours'' on their tim e sheets even

when the acmal holzrs worked were greater;

n. Telling BEAM  TRUCIU NG CM V drivers that they would not be paid for short

rest periods, for time rem ainiùg in readiness to operate a CM V, for time waiting

for their trailers to be loaded or lmloaded at postal facilities, for tim e spent

assiiting or supervising the loading or unloading of their t'railers at postgl

facilities, for time waiting at a relay location for the arrival of another driver,

and for the time during mechnnical breakdowns, weather delaysa accident

delays, and traffic delays;

o. Failing to inform BEAM  TRUCIUNG CM V drivers of the pay requirements ,of

the m ail contracts alld the SCA/FLSA;

i) CMV drivers who were aware of the pa' yp. Preventing BEAM R'RUCIUN

requirements of the mail cpntracts and the SCA/FLSA, as well as BEAM

TRUCKW G'S practice of paying drivers less than required tmder the
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SCN FLSA, from sharing that information with other drivers, DOL, DOT, and

any other government agency in an effort to conceal the ongoing conspiracy,''

Creating an ttover Hotlrs List audit progrnm'' lhat identified drivers whoq. ' .-

reported. on their time sheets more time than the GKstalldard hours,'' and

contacting these drivers to convince them to report the ''standard hotlrs'' or less

time on future tipe sheets to conceal the faét that BEAM TRUCKD G CM V

drivers were being undexpaid in violation of the SCA/FLSA and driving in

violation of the FM CSA HOS safety regulations;

Fàiling to inform the BEAM  TRUCKW G employees responsible for

implementing the Over Homs List audit program how the BEAM  TRUCIUNG

CM V drivers were required to be paid under thé SCA/FSLA and the l ail

contracts- .7

s. Directing the BEAM  TRUCKW G employees responsible fQr implementing the

Over Hotlrs List audit program to implement the program to pay BEAM

TRUCIUNG CM V l ivers in violation of the SCA/FSLA and the mail

contracts;

Failing to review and consider BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers' requests for
' :

additional pay;

u. Failing to pay BDAM TRUCKW G CM V drivers ms required under the

SCA/FLSA and mail conkacts;

Falsely promisihg the USPS in mail contracts that BEAM  TRUCKING would

comply with al1 applicable federala state and local laws and regulations and

faithfully dischazge al1 duties and obligaiions imposed by all applicable federal,
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state and local laws arld regulations, including the FM CSA Safety Regulations

and the SCA/FLSA;

Failing to comply dllring the course of the mail contacts with a11 applicable

federal, state and local laws and regulations and failing to faithfully discharge

a11 duties and obligations imposed by a1l applicable federal, state and local l>ws

alld regtllations, including the FM CSA safety compliance regulations and the

SCN FLSA; and

Obtaining an improper -ind uzlfair competitive advantage over other potential

mail contract competitors who intended to comply with all applicable federal,

state and local laws and regtllations and too faithfully dischm'ge al1 dutiés and

obligations imposed by a11 applicable fqderal, state and local laws, inclùding

the FM USA safety compliance regulations and the SCA/FLSA.

Overt Acts

33. In fartheralzce of the conspiracy, and to effect thq objects thereof, the following overt
k. 

'

acts, nm ong others, were committed in the W estern District of Virginia, and elsewhere.

34. Each factual allegation of Cotmts Tllree through One Hundred and Six of this

indictment are re-alleged mzd incop orated by reference as if fully set forth herein, ahd each

allegation separately constitmes an overt act in furtherrce of the conspiracy charged in this Cdtmt.

ln violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 371.

COUNT TW O

(Conspiracy to Commit an Offense Against the United States)

36. Pragraphs l through 29 of this hdic% ent are re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.
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37. Beginning as early as in or aboùt June 1999, the exact date behg llnknown to the

Grand Jury, and continuing to on or about the date of this indic% ent, in the W estem District of

Vizginia and elsewhere, the defendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCKW G INC., BEAM BROS.

HOLDING CORPORATIONLLG GERAI,D BEAM, GARI,AND BEAM, SHAIJN BEAM,
. '

M CKOLAS KOZEL, did H owingly and willfully conspire, combhe, confederate, and agree

together and with each other and with other individuals both 'lçnown and unlcnown to the Grand

Jllry, to commit an offense against the United States, namely:

a. Knowingly altered, concealed, covered up, and falsilied, a record or docllm ent,

namely, a CM V driver's record of duty status ('Krecord of duty status'') and a

KtBEAM Bros. Trucking W C BI-WEEKT,Y TIME SHEET'' Ctime sheef')#

with intent to impede, obstnzct and influence the investigation and proper

administration of, and in contemplation of and in relation to, any matter within

the jurisdiction of any depndment or agency of the United States, namely, the

DOT, the FMCSA and the DOL, in violation of 18 U.S.C. j 1519*, and

Knowingly and willfully, made and used mzy false writihg and doolm ent,

namely, a record of duty stattls and a tim e sheet, H owing the same to contain

any materially false, fctitious, and gaudulent statem ent and ently in a matter

within thejurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the United

b.

States, namely, the DOT, the FMCSA and the DOL, in violation of 18 U.S.C.

j 1001.

M anner and M eans

38. The defendants and their 'co-conspirators cnrried out the objects of the conspiracy by

vadous m eans, at various times durihg the conspiracy, including'.
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a. Aiding, abetting, encouraging, permitting or requiring BEAM  TRUCIUNG

employees to violate the FM CSA Safety Regulations, including the FM CSA

HOS safety regulations;

b. Making trip/route schedules for BEAM TRUCKTNG CM V drivers and CM V

drivers of its sub-contractors that could not be legally completed within the

FM CSA HOS safety regulations as scheduled;

M aking trip/route schedules for BEAM TRUCKING CM V drivers and CM V

drivers of its sub-contractors tùat aided, abetted, encotlraged, required or

permitted such drivers to violate the FM CSA HOS safety regulations;
, r .

d. Aiding, abetting, encotzraging, requiring and permitting BEAM  TRUCIU NG

CM V drivers and other employees to make false statem ents on the drivers'

records of duty stam s;

e. Aiding, abetting, encotlraging, requiring atld permitting BEAM TRUCKW G

CM V drivers to exceed the legal speed limit to make it falsely appear on the

records of duty status that the trip/route had been com pleted in compliance with

the FM CSA HOS safety regulations;

Aiding, abetting, encollraging, requiring and perm itting BEAM  TRUCKJNG

CM V drivers to falsify their records of duty status by:

(1) Falsely recording their duty status as QKoff-Duty'' when in fact their true
!

stattls was Lr n-Duty'' while perlbnning work mzder the mail contracts,

including pre-trip and/or post-trip inspections of tieir tractor/trailer and

required paperwork;

(2) Falsely recording their duty stams as Roff-Duty Driving'' when in fact

their tnle stattls was Kr rivingi''
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Failing to sign onto or tp sign off of the eleckonic record of duty stattzs
. i

system so that theirrecords of duty stat'us would falsely appear to be tçoff-

Duty'' when their drivérs' true status was RDriving'' and/or ;'OrpDuty;''

(4) Falsely recording their duty stattzs as ttoff-Duty'' when in fact their lrue

duty stattzs was çr n-Duty'' and/or ç'Driving''' and7

(5) Falsely certifying that their record of duty stat'us was acctlrate when in

fact it was not accurate.

g. M anipulating the electronic record of duty sttus system to make it falsely

appear that BEAM  TRUCIUNG CM V chivers were 'r ff-Duty'' or tr n-Duty''

when in 'fact their true status was Ktllrivingp'' and to make it falsely appear that

the drivers were tr ff-Duty'' when itl facttheirtrue status was ir n-Duty'' and/or

'Klz/riqrixlér-''. '

h. Failing to enstlre that BEAM  TRUCKW G employees complywith a1l FM CSA

Safety Regulations;

Aiding, abetting, encotlraging, causingand requirinj BEAM TRUCIUNG

CM V drivers to fatsify their time sheets to report fewer hours worked than they

actually worked, in violation of the SCN FLSA and the m ail contracts;

Aiding, abetting, encouraging, causing and requidng BEAM TRUCK.ING

CM V drivers to falsify their time sheets to report few:r hours worked than they

actually worked by instructing the drivers that their time sheets should match

the false records of duty stattls described above, in violation of SCA/FLSA and

the mail contractss'

k. Fraudulently representing to BEAM  TRUCKW G CM V drivers that they were

entitled to be paid only for a pre-set fixed amount of time, often refen'ed to as
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E'standard hotlrsv'' for completing a trip/route, even if the trip/route tpok more

time to complete than the ççstandard hours,'' and even when the drivers were

paid less than they were entitled to be paid under the mail contracts and the

SCA/FLSA;

Falsely and fraudulentlyrepresentzg to BEAM  TRUCIU NG CM V drivers that

they were permitted only to report Rstandard hours'' on their time sheets eve' n

when the actual hotlrs were greater;

m. Telling BEAM TRUCKW G CM V drivers that theywould not be paid for shory

rest periods, for tim e waiting for their kailers to be loaded or lmloaded at postal

facilitiej, for tim e spent assisting or supervising the loading or unloading of

their tailers at postal facilities, for tim e waiting at a relay location for the arrival

of another dliver, and for the tim e during mechanical breakdowns, weather

delays, accident delays, and traflic delays;

n. Failing to inform BEAM  TRUCKW G UMV drivers of the pay requirements of

the mail contracts and the SCA/FLSA;

o. Preventing BEAM  TRUCKW G CM V drivers who were aware of the pay

requirements of the mail contracts mld the SCA/FLSA, as Fell as BEAM

TRUCKW G'S practice of paying drivers less than reqtlired under the

SCA/FLSN  from shming that information with other dtivers, DOL, DOT, and

any other governm ent agency in an effort to conceal the ongoing conspiracy;

p. Creating an Ktover Hours List'' audit program that identifed drivers who

reported on their time sheets more time than the Kfstandard hotlrs,'' and

contacting these drivers to convince them tb report the t'standard hours'' or less

time on tuture time sheets to conceal the fact that BEAM TRUCKW G CNIV
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ddvers were being underpaid and driving in violation of the FM CSA HOS

safety regulations;

TRUCKING employees responsible for

implem enting the Over Hours List audit program how the BEAM  TRUCIUNG

CM V cldvers were required to be paid under the SCA/FSLA and the mail

contracts'

r. Directing the BEAM  TRUCKING employèes responsible for implementing the

Over Hours List audit program to im plem ent the prop am to pay BEAM

Failing to inform the BEAVq
.
.

TRUCKING CM V ddvers in violation of the SCA/FSLA and the m ail

contracts;

s. Failing to review and consider BEAM TRUCKING CM V ddvers' requests for

additional pay; and

t. Failing to pay BEAM  TRUCIU NG CM V drivers as required under the

SCA/FLSA and the mail contracts.

Overt Acts

In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effect the objects thereof, the following overt

acts, am ong others, were comm itted in the W estem  District of Virginia, and elsewhere.

40. Each factual allegation of Counts Three through One Hundred and Six of this

indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as if fully s8t forth herein, and each

allegation separately constitutes an overt act in f'urtherance of the conspiracy charged in this Count.

In violation of Title 18, United Stbtes Code, Section 371.
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COUNTS THREE TO FOR TY-SEW N

(Falsifcation of Records in Contemplation of Federal Matter)

42. Paragraphs . l through 29 of this h dicM ent are re-alleged and incop orated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

43. On or about the dates set forth below, as to each cotmt, in the W estern District of

Virginia and elsewhere, the defendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCKING  INC., BEAM  BROS.

HOLDING CORPORATION LLG GEM LD BEAV  GARLAND BEAM , SHAUN BEAV

NICKOLAS KOZEL, and others known alld lmknown to the paùd jury, did knowingly alter,

conceal, cover up, and falsify, as set forth below, a record or docllment, namely, a CM V driver's

Record of Elut.y Stams, for the BEAM  TRUCKJNG driver identifed by his/her initials, with intent

to impede, obsmzct and influence the investigation and proper administration of any matter and in
Nx

contemplation of and in relation to any such matter within the jurisdiction of the United States

Depar% ent of Transportation and the United States Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administraéona

a department and administration of the United States.

44. On or about the stated dates, in the W estem  Distict of Virginia and elsewhere, the
h,

defendants, BEAM  BROS. TRUCIG NG, INC., BEAM  BROS. HOLDING CORPORATION

LLG GERAI,D BEAM , GARI,AND BEAM , SHAIJN BEAM , NICKOLAS KOZEL, and

others known and llnknown to the grand jury, (l) were members of a conspiracy as dçscribed in

Count Two of this indictment, (2) the offense of falsifcation of reèords in contemplation of a

federal matter was èomm itted or was caused to be committed by a member of and during the

conspiracy, (3) the member of the conspiracy committed or caujed the offense to be committed

while a member of and dtlring the existence of the conspiracy, and (4) the offense was committed

in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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z l

Count Date Driver & Falsillcations
(On or
About

DRIVER TB
3. 9/29/12 a. TB was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 06:37 when he was actually On-Duty

dtlring some or a11 of that period of time.
b. t'B was OF-Duty Dziving behveen 06:37 and 06:58 when he was actually
Driving duriùg some or all of that period of time.

c. IB was Off-Duty between 20:1 1 alzd 20:35 when he was acmally On-Dut.y
dming some or all of that period of time.

d. TB was Of-I)uty Driving between 20:35 arld 20:44 when he wms actually
Driving during some or a1l of that period of tim e.

e. TB was Off-Dttty between 20:44 and 00:00 when he was acm ally On-Duty
dllneng some or al1 of that period of time.

' f TB's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 57 minutes w' hen it was actually
approxim ately 1 1 hours and 27 minutes.

g. TB did not (Irive a CM V after 14 qonsecutive hom s after coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming
On-l7uty.

4. 3/7/13 a. TB was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 06:39 when he was actaally On-Duty
dtlring some of that period of tim e.

b. TB was Ofl--DUty Driving bétween 06:39 and 07:03 when he was acmally
. Driving dtlring som e or al1 of that period of time.

c. TB was Off-Duty between 07:03 and 08:14 when he was actually On-Duty
dtzring some or a1l of that period of tim e.

b Driving between 20:16 and 20:24 when he was actuallyd. TB was OIF uty
Driving during some or a11 of that period of time.

e. TB was Off-DUty between 20:24 and 20:50 when he was actually On-Duty
during some or al1 of that period of time.

f. TB was Of-lluty Driving between 20:50 and 21:02 when he was actually
Driving dming som e or a11 of that period of tim e.

g. TB was Off-Duty between 21:02 and 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
dtlrillg some or al1 of that period of tinw.

h. TB's totl Driving time was l l hours when it was actually approxim ately l l
hotlrs and 44 minutes.

i. TB did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs, after com ing On-Duty
when he acmally did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after cùming
On-Duty.

DRIVER JM

5. 9/22/12 a. JM  was OfI--DUty Driving between 02:37 and 03:03 when he was actually
Driving during solhe or al1 of that pedod of time.

b. JM  was Off-Duty between 03:03 and 03:36 when he was acm ally On-Duty
dudng some or all of that period of tim e. '

c. JM  was OF-Duty Driving between 17:03 arld 17:27 when he was actually
Driving dllrillg som e or a1l of that period of tim e.
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d. JM 's total Driving tim e was 10 hours and 49 minutes. when it was actually
approxim ately 1 1 hotlrs and 39 minutes.

e. JM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after com ing On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming
On-Duty.

6. 3/9/13 a. JM  was OfI--DUty Driving be> een 02:13 and 02:35 when he was acmally
Dtiving dming some or a11 of that period of time.

b. JM was Off-DUty Driving between 16:40 and 17:01 when he was actually
Driving during some or a1l of that period of time.

c. m 's total Driving tim e was 10 hours and 40 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 1 1 hours and 23 minutes.

d. .1M  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after com ing On-Duty
when he acmally clid drive a CM V after 14 clnsecutive holzrs after coming
on-outy.

DRIVER KC

7. 9/15/12 a. KC was Of-17uty between 00:00 and 03:31 when she was acmally Driving
and OnrDuiy during some or a11 of that period of time.

b. KC was Of-Dtlty Driving between 03:31 and 04:18 when she was actually
Driving dtuing some or all of that period of time.

c. KC was OIFIluty Driving between 17:51 and 18:04 when she was actlzally
Dliving during some or al1 of tlzat period of time.

d. KC was Off-lluty between 18:16 and 00:00 when she was actually On-Duty
some or al1 of that period of time.

e. KC's total Driving time was 10 houfs and 54 minutes when it was acmally
approxim ately 12 hotlrs and 13 m inutes.

f. KC did not drive a CM V aher 14 consecutive hom s after com ing On-Duty
when she actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after com ing
On-m ty. .

8. 2/9/13 a. KC was OF-lnuty be> een 00:00 and 02:51 when she was acm ally On-Duty
during som e or al1 of that period of tim e. ' 

,

b. KC was Off-Duty Driving between 02:51 and 03:13 when she was actually
Driving dtuing some or all of that period of time.

c. KC was Off-Duty Driving between 17:05 and 17:21 when she was actually
Driving dtlring some or al1 of that pedod of time.

d. KC was Of-Duty between 17:21 and 00:00 when she was actually On-Duty
som e or all of that period of tim e.

e. KC's total Driving time was 10 hotu's and 40 m inutes when it was aèmally
gpproxim ately 1 1 houzs and l 8 m inutes.

L KC did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs aAer com ing On-Duty
when she acmally did (Irive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after coming
On-Duty.

9: 8/16/14 a. KC was On-Duty or Off-DUty between 06:31 and 06:45, between 06:52 and
07:29, between 09:35 atid 09:53,between 13:12 mzd 13:3l,between 13:31 and
14:06 and between 19:33 and 20:09 when she was actually Dliving for som e
eriod of time duling some or al1 of those eriods of time.
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Case 5:17-cr-00007-MFU   Document 1   Filed 03/16/17   Page 27 of 61   Pageid#: 27



b. KC's total Driving time was 10 hours and 59 minutes when it was acmally
more than l 1 hours. '

' DRIVER TM  .
l0. 9/22/12 a. TM  was Off-m tybetween 00:00 and 02:42 when he was actually Driving and

On-Duty during some or all of that period of tim e.
b. TM  was Off-m tybetween 16:33 arld 00:00 when he Was acmally Driving and
On-Duty during some or all of that period of time.

c. 'rM  drove a CM V after talcing 10 consecutive hom s Off-Duty when he
actually drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty.

d. TM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hom s afer coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after coming
On-Duty.

l 1. 12/21/12 a. TM  was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 03:22 when he was actùally Dtiving
and On-Duty dtlring som e or a11 of that period of time.

b. TM  was Off-Duty between 17:18 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving
and On-Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

c. TM did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive holzrs aûer coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive holzrs After coming
On-Duty.

12. 3/21/13 a. TM was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 02:45 when he was acm ally On-l7uty
during some or all of that pèriod of tim e.

b. TM  was Off-Dutybetween 16:21 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty dtzring som e or a1l of that period of time.

c. TM  drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hollrs Off-DUty when he
actually dzove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty.

d. TM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs aher coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotu's after com ing
On-Duty.

DRW ER RM
l3. 9/19/12 à. 1lM  was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 04:06 when he was actually Driving and

On-Duty during some or a11 of that period of time.
b. RM  was Off-Duty between 10:03 and 12:1 1 when he was acm ally On-Duty

X
dttring som e or all of that period of time.

c. ltM  was Off-Duty between 17:37 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during some or a11 of that period of time. .

d. RM 's total Driving time was 10 hours and 57 minutes when it was actually
approxim ately 1 1 hours and 55 minutes.

e. RM  (Irove a CM V aûer taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Of-Duty when hé
actually drove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive hotu's Off-Dutyk

f. RM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlr: after coming On-Duty
when he acm ally did drive a commercial motor vehicle after 14 consecutive
hotu's aRer coming OnzDuty.

14. 3/22/13 a. RM was Off-Duty and Off-DUty Driving between 00:00 and 04:12 when he
was acmally Driving and On-Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

b. RM was OIT-DUty Driving between 09:48 and 09:57 when he was acmally
Driving dtlring some or a11 of that time.
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c. RM  was Off-Duty between 09:57 and l2. :08 when he was acm ally Oiz-Duty
during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

d. RM  was Off-Duty and Off-Duty Driving between 17:45 and 00:00 when he
was acmally Driving and On-Dutk Ltlring some or a11 of that period of time.

e. RM 's total Driving time was 10 hotzrs and 58 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 11 hollrs and 27 minutes.

f. RM drove a CM V after taldng 10 consecutive hotlrs Of1LDUty when he
actually drove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive homs Off-m ty.

g. lkM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs aAer com ing On-Dut.y
when he actually did drive a commercial motor vehicle aher 14 consecutive
hotlrs after coming On-Duty. .

DRIVER RL

15. 9/22/12 a. Rl,was Off-lluty between 00:00 and 02:19 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during some or all of that period of tim e.

b. RI, was Off-m tybetween 15:52 and 00:00 when he was acmally Driving and
On-Duty during some or all df that period of tim e.

c. RI,'s total Driving tim e was 10 holzrs alld 52 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 1 1 hollrs and 12 mirmtes.

d. RL did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours aher com ing On-Duty
when he actually did drive a commercial m otor vehicle after 14 consecutive
hours after coming On-Duty.

16. 1/18/13 a. RT, was Off-lluty and Off-Duty Driving between 00:00 and 02:24 when he
was acm ally Driving and On-Duty dtlring some or all of that period of time.

b. RT, was Off-lluty and Off-Duty Driving between 16:24 and 00:00 when he
was actually Driving and On-Duty during some or all of that period of time.

c. RT,'s total Drivirlg time was 10 hours and 54 mhmtes when it was actually
approximately 1 1 hotlrs and 25 minutes.

d. RL did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after com ing On-Duty
when he actually did drive a comm ercial m otor vehicle after 14 consecutive
hotlrs after coming On-Duty.

DRIVER DP
17. 9/21/12 a. DP was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 02:57 when he was actually Driving and

On-Duty dtlriné some or a11 of that period of time.
b. DP was Off-Duty between 16:46 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during som e or al1 of that period of time.

c. DP's total Driving time was 11 hours when it was acm ally approxim ately l l
hottrs and 28 minufes.

d. DP did not drive a CNIV after 14 consecutive hom s after com ing On-Duty
when he actually did drive a com mercial m otor vehicle after 14 consecytive
hours after coming On-Duty. .

l8. 12/19/12 a. DP was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 04:28 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

b. DP was Off-Duty between 19:57 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

c. DP'? total Driving time was 10 hottrs and 57 minutes when it was actually
approximately 1 l hotlrs and 30 minutes.
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d. DP drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty when he actually
drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive holzrs Off-Dtlty. .

e. DP did not drive a CM V aûer 14 consecutive hours aûer com ing On-Duty
when he actually did drive a commercial motor vehicle after 14 consecutive
hours after coming On-Duty.

DRIVER GR
19. 12/30/12 a. GR was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 01:40 when he was acmally On-Duty

dtlring som e or a1l of that period oftime.
b. GR was Off-DutyDrivingbetween 07:13 and 07:22, between 07:33 and 07:41,
and between 08:31 and 08:39 when he was actually Driving for some period
of tim e dtlring some or all of those periods of time.

c. GR was Off-m ty between 07:02 and 07:13, between 07:41 and 08:31, and
between 08:48 and 09:20 when he was actually On-Duty for some period of
time during som e or all of those periods of time.

d. GR was Off-m ty between 14:57 and 00:00 when he was acmally On-Duty
dldring some or al1 of that period of time.

e. GR's total Driving time was 10 holzrs and 50 mingtes when it was acmally
approxim ately l l hours and 15 minutes.

20. 2/6/13 a. GR was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 01:40 when he was actually On-Duty
during some or al1 of that period of tim e. '

b. GRwas Off-DutyDriving between 07:38 and 07:44, between 07:51 and 08:11,
and between 09:09 and 09:19 when he was actually Driving for some period
of tim e during som e or a1l of those periods of time.

c. GR was Off-Duty between 07:25 and 07:38, between 08:1 1 and 09:09, and
between 09:25 and 09:59 when he was actually On-Duty for some period of
time during som e or al1 of those periods of tim e.

d. GR was Off-Duty between 15:1 1 and 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
dming some or all of that period of tim e.

e. GR's total Driving tim e was 10 hours and 46 m inutes when it was qctually
approximately l 1 hotlrs and 22 minutes.

DRIVER CS

21 . 9/18/12 a. CS was OF-17uty Driking between 07:24 and 07:30 wken he was actually
Driving during some or al1 of that period of tim e. .

b. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 08:35 and 09:17 when he was acm ally
Driving during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

c. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 1 1:49 and 12:01 when he was àctually
Driving duritlg some or a1l of that period of time:

d. CS was Off-DUty between 14:50 and 00:00 when he was acmally Olt-Duty
during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

e. CS's tot'al Driving time was 10 hours and 56 m inutes when it was acmally
approximately 11 hom s and 56 minutes.

22. 3/8/13 a. CS was Ofl--Duty Driving between 03:08 and 03:14 when he was actually
Driving dllring some or all of that period of tim e.

b. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 08:43 and 09:20 when he was actually
Driving during som e or al1 of that eriod of time.
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c. CS was OIï:DUt.y Driving between 10:26 and 10:35 when he was actually
Driving dttring som e or a1l of that period of time.

d. CS was Offm uty between 16:41 and 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
dtuing som e or all of that period of time.

e. CS's total Driving time was 10 hours and 49 minutes when it was acmally
appioximately l l hotu's and 41 minutes.

DRIVER RK

23. 9/25/13 a. RK was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 02:32 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during some or a1l of 'that period' of time.

b. RK was Off-m ty between 08:.44 and 09:34 when he was actually On-Duty
dtlring some or al1 ef that period of time.

c. RK was Off-Duty Driying be> een 09:34 and 10:34 when he was actually
Driving during söme or a1l of that period of tim e.

d. RK was Off-Duty be> een 15:01 and 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
during some or a11 of that period of time.

e. RI, was On-Duty or Off-DUty between 02:32 and 02:38. between 02:51 and
03:06, and between 08:44 and 09:34, when he wms acttlally Driving for some
eriod of ttme dtlring some or a11 of those periods of time.P

f. RK 's total Driving time was 10 hours and 18 m inutes when it was actually
a roximately l 1 hours and 18 minutes.

24. 9/26/13 a. RK was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 02:15 when he was actually Driving' and
On-Duty during some or a1l of that period of time.

r b ltK was Off-m ty between 0#:45 and 0$:49 when he was actually On-Duty
during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

c. RK was Off-Duty Driving between 08:49 and 09:49 when he was actually
Driving dtlring som e or a1l of that period of time.

d. RK w4s Off-Duty between 15:06 alld 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
during some or all of that period of tim e.

e. RK was On-Duty or Off-Duty between 07:45 and 07:54, between 07:54 and
08:49, between 1 1:20 and 11:41, and between 14:59 and 15:06, when he was
actually Driving for some period of time during some or a11 of those periods
of tim e.

L RK's total Driving tim e was 10 hours alzd 19 minutes when it was actually
approximately 1 1 hotlrs and 19 minutes.
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DRIVER SG
25. 10/21/12 a. SG was Of-Duty between 00:00 and 01:25 when he was acmally Driving and

On-Duty during some or a11 of that period of time.
b. SG was Off-DUty Driving be> een 14:53 and 15:19 when he was actually
Driving dtlring some or all of that period of time.

c. SG was Off-Duty between 15:19 and 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
dun'ng some of that period of tim e.

d. SG's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 53 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 1 1 hours and 54 minutes.

e. SG did not drive a CM V aûer 14 cbnsecutive hours after com ing On-Duty
when he acmally did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after com ing
On-Duty.

26. 4/14/13 a. SG was OfI'-DUt.y between 00:00 and 01:35 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty duting some or a1l of that period of tim e.

b. SG was Off-Du? betweeh 14:40 and 15:01 when he was actually On-Duty
during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

c. SG was OfI--DUty Driving between 15:25 and 15:32 when he was actually
Driving during som e or all of that period of time. 

.

d. SG was Off-Duty between 15:32 and 15:38 when he was actually On-Duty
dtlring som e or al1 of that period of time.

e. SG was Off-DUty Driving between 15:38 and 16:00 when he was acmally
Driving dming some or a1l of that period of time.

f. SG pas Off-Duty between t 6:00 and 00:00 when he was acmally On-Duty
during som e or all of that period of time.

g. SG's total Driving time was-lo hours and 55 m inutés when it was acmally
approxim ately 1 1 hotlrs and 47 m inutes.

h. SG did not drive a CM V aûer 14 consecutive hollrs aAer coming On-lxlty
when he actually did drive a CMV after 14 consecutive hours after coming
On-Duty.

DRIVER AM

27. 9/15/12 a. AM was Off-Duty be> een 00:00 and 00:53 when he was actually On-Duty
during a11 or some of that peribd of time.

b. AM was OF-DU? Driving between 00:53 and 01:16 when he was actually
Driving dlzring some or a11 of that period of time.

c. AM  was Off-Duty between 01:16 and 01:35 when he was actually On-Duty
dllring som e or all of that peliod of time.

d. AM  was Off-Duty Driving between 01:35 and 01:58 when he was actually
Driving during some or al1 of that petiod of tim e.

e. AM  wms Off-tluty between 07:08 and 08:36 when he was acmally On-l7uty
during som e or a11 of that period of timé.

f. AM 's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 48 m irmtes when it was actually
approxim ately l l hours and 34 m inutes.

g. AM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotu's after com ing On-Duty
when he acmally did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming
On-Duty.
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28. 4/25/13 a. AM  was Off-lluty between 00:00 and 01:01 when he was acm ally On-l7uty
dtlring a1l or some of that period of time.

b. AM was Off-DUty Driving between 01:01 and 01:26 when he was actually
Driving dtu'ing some or a11 of that period of tim é.

c. AM  was Off-Dut
.
y between 01:26 and 01:35 when he was actdally On-lluty

during some or all of that period of time.
d. AM  was Off-Duty between 07:14 and 08:45 when he was actually On-Duty
dtlring somç or a1l of that period of time.

e. AM was OfI--DUty Driving between 15:05 and 15:17 when he was actually
Ddving during some or a11 of that period of time.

f. AM was Off-lluty between 15:17 and 00:00 when he was actually On-lluty
duling some or a11 of that period of fim e.

g. AM 's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 58 minutes when it was acmally
épprokimately l l hottrs and 48 minutes.

h. AM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after çom ing On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hollrs after coming
On-Duty. '

29. 12/18/12 a. JI-I was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 03:48 when he was actually On-Duty
dtlring sbm e or a11 of that period of time.

b. JH was Off-Duty Driving between 03:48 and 04:06 When he was actually
Driving dluing some or a11 of that period of time.

c. .1H wms Off-Duty between 04:06 and 04:51 when he was acm ally On-Duty
%during some or a11 of that period of tim .

d. J1'1 was Off-Duty Driving between 04:51 and 05:02 when he was actually
Driving during some or a11 of that period of time.

e. JH was Off-Duty Driving between l l :12 and 11:18 when he was actually
Driving during some or a11 of that period of time. !

f. J1-l was Off-Duty between 17:31 and 00:00 when he' was actually On-Duty
dtlring som e or a11 of that period of tim e.

g. JH's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 54 minutes when it was acttzally
a roxim ately 1 l hours and 29 m inutes.

30. 3/26/13 a. .Ffl wms Off-Duty between 00:00 and 03:54 when he was acmally On-Duty
dtlring som e or al1 of that period of tim e.

b. JH was Off-Duty Driving between 03:54 and 04:06 when he was actually
Driving dtu'ing som e or all of that period of time. ,

c. JH was Off-Duty be> een 04:06 and 04:42 when he was actually On-Duty
dtuing som e or a1l of that period of time.

d. JH was Off-thzty Driving between 04:42 mzd 04:50 when he was actually
Driving dllring some or all of that period of time.

e. JH was Off-lluty Driving between 10:50 and 10:55 when he was acm ally
Driving during some or all of that period of time.

f. J.FI was Off-Duty between 17:39 and 00:00 when he was actually On-Duty
during som e or al1 of that period of tim e.

g. JH's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 59 minutes when it was actaally
a roximately 1 1 hotlrs and 24 m inutes.
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DRM R M B
3l. 12/20/12 a. M B was Off-DUty between 00:00 and 07:01 when she was actually Driving

and On-Duty during som e of that period of time.
b M B was Off-DUty Driving between 19:12 and 19:52 when she was acmally
Dtiving dllring some or a1l of that period of fim e.

c. M B was Off-Duty between 19:52 and 00:00 when she was actually On-Duty
dtlring some or a11 of that period of time.

d. M B>s total Driving time was 10 hours and 43 minutes when it was actually
approximately l 1 houzs and 41 minutes.

DRIW R JC
32. 12/12/12 a. JC was OII2DUty between 00:00 and 05:32 when he was actually Driving and

On-Duty during some of that period of time.
b. JC was Off-Duty between 17:28 and 00:00 when he was acmally Driving and
On-Duty during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

c. JC's total Driving time was 1 1 hotlrs and 21 minutes when it was actually
approximately 12 hours and 20 minutes.

DRIVER RT

33. 12/22/12 a. RT was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 09:04 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty duting some or a11 of that pedod of time.

b. RT was Off-Duty between 20:37 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during some or a1l of that pedod of time.

c. RT's total Driving time was 10 hours and 59 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 12 hottrs and 15 minutes.

d. RT drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-m tywhen he actually
drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-DUty.

e. RT did not drive a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hours after com ing
On-Duty when he actually did drive a comm ercial vehicle after 14 consecutive
hotlrs after coming On-Duty.

34. 12/23/12 a. RT was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 08:26 when he was acmally Driving and
On-Duty during som e or a11 of that period of time.

b. RT was Off-Duty between 18:15 and 00:00 when he was actually Drivhg and
On-Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

c. RT's total Driving time was 8 hours and 41 minutes wh:n it was acmally
approxim ately l 6 hours and 16 minutes.

d. RT drove a CMV after taking 1ù consecutive hours Off-m tywhen he acmally
drove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive hotu's Off-Duty.

e. RT did not Yive a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming
On-Dutywhen he actually did drive a comm ercial vehicle after 14 consecutive
hottrs after coming On-Duty.

35. 2/20/14 a. RT was Off-Duty between 15:41 alld 00:00 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty during some or a11 of that period of time.

b. RT was On-Duty or Off-Duty between 02:36 and 02:52, between 06:18 and
07:23, between 08:56 and 09:25, between 12:41 and 12:46. between 12:52 and
13:50 and between 15:22 énd 15:34, when he was acmally Driving for some
eriod of tim e dtlring some or a1l of those eriods of time.
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c. RT's total Driving time was 10 hom s when it was actually approximately l l
hotlrs and 13 minutes.

d. RT did not drive a com mercial vehicle afler 14 consecutive hollrs after comi.ng
On-Dutywhen he acmally did drive a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive
hours after coming On-Duty

DRIVER W B
36. 10/26/12 a. W B was Off-DUty between 00:00 and 06:31 when he was éctually Dridng and

On-Duty durillg some of that period of tim e.
b. W B was Off-Duty Dliving between 13:24 and 14:01 when he was actually
Driving dtuing some or a11 of that petiod of time.

c. W B was Off-Dutybetween 14:01 and 23:24 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty dtlring some of that period of tim e.

d. W B's total Driving time was 5 holzrs and 59 m inutes when it was actually
approximately 7 hotlrs and 4 minutes.

37. 10/27/12 a. W B was Of-lluty between 04:56 and 16:29 when he was actually Driving
dizrhg some or a11 of that period of time.

b. W B's total Driving time without a ten-hour rest period w>s 15 hotlrs and 54
minutes when it was actually approximately 24 hotlrs and 52 minutes.

c. W B drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-m ty when he
acttlally drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty.

d. W B did not drive a comm ercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hours after
com ing On-Dut.y when he actually did drive a com mercial vehicle aûer 14
consecutive hours aler com ing On-Duty.

38. 1 1/24/12 a. W B was Off-Duty between 05:12 and 15:l5when he wms ucttlally Driving
during som e or al1 of that period of tim e.

b. W B's total Driving tim e without a ten-hour rest period was 17 hollrs and 27
m inutes when it was actually approximately 21 hours and 15 m inutes.

c. W B drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty when he
actually dzove a CM V without tnking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-m ty.

d. W B did not drive a com mercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hotlrs after
coming On-Duty when he actually did drive a commercial vehicle after 14
consecutive hours aûer coming On-Duty.

39. 12/21/12 a. W B was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 09:17 when he was actually Driving and
On-Duty dtlring some of that period of tim e.

b. W B>s total Driving tim e was 10 hotlrs and 53 minutes whe' n it was actually
a roximately l 1 hotlrs and 10 minutes.

40. 12/22/12 a. W B was Of-17uty Driving between 07:34 and 08:34 when he was acmally
Driving during some or al1 of that period of time.

b. W B's total Driving tim e without a ten-hour rest period was 19 hours and 59
m inutes when it wms acttlally approximately 21 hottrs and l 6 m inutes. '

c. W B drove a CM V aftef tnking 10 consecutive hours Off-DUty when he
acm ally drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hours Off-m ty.

d. W B did not drive a commercial vehicle aher 14 consecutive hours after
coming On-Duty when he actually did drive a commercial vehicle aAer 14
consecutive hotlrs aher coming On-Duty.
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DRIVER KS
12/7/12 a. Ks was os-outy orivtng between 00:47 and 01:17 when he was acmally4l.

Driving during some or al1 of that period of time.
b. KS was OF-Duty Driving between 09:27 and 09:45 when he was actually
Driving dttring some or all of that period of time.

c KS was Oftllluty between 09:45 and 10:48 when' he was actually On-Dut.y
dtlring som e or a11 of that peliod of tim e.

d KS's total Driving time without a ten-hour rest period was 14 hours and 19
minutes whe/ it was actually approximately 15 hours and 7 minutes.

e. KS dzove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive holzrs Off-Duty when he actually
# CMV without taking 10 consecutive holzrs Off-Duty.ove a

f. KS did not drive a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hotlrs after com ing
On-Dutywhen he acttlally did drive a commercialvehicle after 14 consecutive
hotlrs after coming On-Duty.

TM  EDITS

42. 1 1/5/12 On or about November 5, 2012, TM edited BEAM  TRUCKJNG Driver DP's
eleckonic Record of Duty Status for November 2, 2012 to falsely show that:
a. DP was Kr :R--lxlty Driving'' between 16:43 and 17:04 when DP's November
2, 2012 Record of 17:11 Stams originally showed thatDp was actuallyDriving
during this period of time.

b. DP did not drive a CM V aher 14 consecutive holzrs after com ing On-Duty
when DP's November 2, 2012 Record of Duty Status originally showed that
DP actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotu's after coming On-
Duty.

43. l 1/5/12 On or about November 5, 2012, 'I'M edited BEAM TRUCKING Driver AM 's
electronic Record of Duty Status for November 3, 2012 to falsely show that:
a. AM was G'Off-DutyDriving'' between 00:50 and 01:04 when AM 's November
3, 2012 Record of Duty Status originally showed that AM was acmally
Driving dtlrirlg this period of time.

b. AM 's total Driving tim e was 10 hours and 53 minutes when it was acmally l l
hotlrs and 18 minutes.

44. 2/19/13 On or about February l9, 2013, 'rM  edited BEAM TRUCKW G Driver KC's
electronic Record of Duty Stams for Febnzary 19, 2013 to falsely show that:
a. KC was Kr ff-Duty Driving'' between 06:39 and 07:01 when KC's February
19 2013 Record of Duty Status originally showed that KC was actually!
Dnving duling this period of time.

b. KC's total D'riving time was 10 hotlrs and 54 minutes when it was actilally 11
hours and 16 minutes.

45. 4/25/13 On or about April 25, 2013, TM  edited BEAM  TRUCKW G Driver JM 's
eleckonic Record of Dtzty Status for April 25, 2013 to falsely show that:
a. JM  was t'Off-Duty Driving'' between 02:45 and 03:06 when JM 's April 25,
2013 Record of Duty Status originally showed that JM  was actually Driking
dtlring this period of time.

b. JM 's total Driving time was 10 hours and 51 minutes when it was acmally 1 l
hotlrs and 20 m inutes.
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DRIVER KDS
46. 2/8/17 a. KDS was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 04:21 when h: was acmally On-Duty

during some or al1 of that period of time.
b. KDS drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive holzrs Off-Duty when he
actually drove a CM V without tnking 10 consecutive hours Off-m ty.

c. K-DS did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V aher 14 consecutive holzrs afer coming On
Duty. '

47. 2/10/17 a. KDS was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 05:59 when he was acmally On-Duty
dtuing some or al1 of that period of time.

b. KDS did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours qfter coming On-Duty
when he acttzally did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hottrs aûer coming On
Duty.

45. In violation of Title 18, Unitqd States Code, Sectiolp 1519, 2(a), and 209.

CO UNTS FORTY-EIGH T TO NG ETY-TW O

(False Statements)

46. Paragraphs 1 through 29 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

47. On or about the dates set forth below, as to each colmt, in the W estern District 6f

Virginia and elsewhere, the èefendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCKING INC., BEAM BROS.

HOLDINGCORPOM TION LLG GERAI,D BEAV  GARLAND BEAM, SHAUN BEAM,

M CKOLAS KOZEL and others lmown andlmknownto the g'randjury, willfully andknowingly,
' 

;m ade and used any false writing and doolment
, namely, a commercial m otor yehicle driver s

record of duty status the BEAM TRUCKING driver identified by his/her initials, lcnowing the

same to contain alzy materially false, fictitious, and Saudulent statement and ently in a matièr

within thejurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the United States, nnmely, the

United States Department of Transportation and the United States Federal M otor Carrier Safety

Adm inistration.
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48. On or about the stated dates, irl the W estem District of Virginia and elsewhere, the

defenbants, BEAM BROS. TRUCKING, lNC., BEAM BROS. HOLDING CORPORATION

LLC, GERALD BEAM , GART,AND BEAV  SHAIJN BEAM , NICKOLAS KOZEL, and

others lmown and llnknoWn to the grand jury, (l) were membçrs of a conspimcy as described in
. 

i

Cotmt Two of this indictment, (2) the ofense of making and using a false record was committed

or was caused to be committed by a member of and dtlring the conspiracy, (3) the member of the

conspiracy com mitted or caused the offenje to be comm itted while a m ember of and dlzring the

conspiracy, and (4) thè offense.was committed in fndherance of the conspiracy.
%.

Count Date Driver & Falsillcations
(On or
About

DRM R TB
48. 9/29/12 a. TB was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 06:37 when he was actually On-m ty

' dllring some or al1 of that period of time.
b. TB was OffrDu!y Dliving between 06:37 and 06:58 when he was actually
Driving dtlring som e or all of that period of tim e.

c. TB was Off-Dutybetween 20:1 1 and 20:35 when he was acmally On-Duty
during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

d. TB Fas.off-Duty Driving between 20:35 and 20:44 when he was actually
Driving during som e or a1l of that period of time.

e. R'B was Off-Dutybetween 20:44 and 00:00 when he Fas acttlally On-Duty
dming soG e or a11 of that period of tim e. .

f. TB's tqtal Driving time waq l 0 hotlrs and 57 minutes when it was actually
approxlmately 1 1 hotlrs and 27 minutes.

g. TB did not drive a CM V aher 14 consecutive hollrs after coming On-m ty
when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming
On-Duty.

4, 9. 3/7/13 a. TB was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 06:39 when he was actually On-m ty
dlln'ng som e of that period of tim e.

b. TB was Off-Duty Diivilzg bptween 06:39 mld 07:03 when he was actually
Driving dnn'ng some or a11 of thât period of time. !

c. TB was Off-Dutybetween 07:03 and 08:14 when he was actually On-Duty
during som e or a1l of that pefiod of time. 

.

d. TB was Off-Duty Driving between 20:16 and 20:24 when he was acttplly
Driving dllring some or a11 of that pedod of timè.

e. TB was Off-Duty between 20:24 and 20:50 when he was acm ally On-Duty
dtlring som e or all of that eriod of time.
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f. TB was Off-Duty Driving between 20:50 and 21:02 when he was actually
Driving dttring some or all of that period of time.

' 

TB was Off-Duty between 21:02 and 00:00 when he was acmally 0n-g-

Duty dtuing some or al1 of thqt period of time.
h. TB's total Driving time was 1 1 hotlrs when it was actually approximately

, J

'

1 1 hottrs and 44 minutes.
i. TB did not drive a CM V after 14 consecvtive hotlrs after coming On-m ty
when he acm ally did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming
On-Duty.

DRBX R AW
50. 9/22/12 a. JM was Off-Duty Driving between 02:37 and 03:03 when he was acmally

Driving dtlring som e or al1 of that period of time. . '
b. JM  was OfFDUty between 03:03 and 03:36 when he was actually On-m ty
dtuing some or a1l of that period of time.

c. .TM  was Off-Duty Driving bètween 17:03 and 17:27 when he was acm ally
Driving during some or a11 of that period of time. ' '

d. JM 's totalDriving time was 10 hotlrs and 49 m inutes when it was acmally
approxim ately l l hotlrs and 39 m inutes.

e. JM did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotu's after coming On-buty
when he afctually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hottrs after coming
On-Duty.

5l. 3/9/13 a. .TM  was Off-Duty Driving between 02:13 and 02:35 when he was acmally
Driving during some or a11 of that period of tim e.

. 
'

b. JM  was Off-DutyDriving between 16:40 and 17:01 when he was actually
Driving during som e or all of that period of time.

a '
c. .1M  s total Driving tim e was 10 hotlrs and 40 m inutes when it was actually
approximately 11 hotlrs and 23 m inutes.

d. JM  clid not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CMV aûer 14 consecutive hours after
coming On-Duty.

sjtjvxu xc

52. 9/15/12 a. KC was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 03:31 when she was actually
Driving and On-Duty during some or all of that period of time.

b. KC was Off-Duty Driving between 03:31 and 04:18 when she was
actually Driving dtlring some or all of tlmt period of tim e.

c. KC was Off-Duty Driving between, 17:51 and 18:04 when she was
actually Driving dtlring some or é11 of that period of tim e.

d. KC was Off-Duty between 18:16 and 00:00 when she was acmally On-
, Duty som e or all of that period of tim e.

e. KC's toGl Driving time was 10 holzrs ànd 54 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 12 hotlrs and 13 m inutes.

f. KC did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming On-
Duty when she actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs àfter
coming On-Duty.

53. 2/9/13 a. KC was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 02:51 when she was actually On-
Dut.y during some or a11 of that period of time.
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b. KC was Off-Duty Driving between 02:51 and 03:13 when she was
acm ally Driving dtlring som e or a1l of that period of time.

c. KC was Off-Duty Driving between 17:05 and 17:21 when she was
actually Driving during som e or a1l of that period of time.

d. KC was Off-Duty between 17:21 and 00:00 when she was actaally On-
17111 some or a1l of that period of tim..

e. KC's total Drivingtime was 10 holzrs and 40 m inutes when it was actually
approxim ately l l hours and 18 m inutes.

L KC did not drive a CM V after' 14 consecutive hotlrs aher coming 0n-
Duty when she acmally did drive a CMV after 14 consecutive holzrs after
coming On-Duty.

. 54. 8/16/14 a. KC was On-Duty or Off-Duty between 06:31 and 46:45, between 06:52
and 07:29, between 09:35 and 09:53, between 13:12 and 13:31, between
13:31 and 14:06, and between 19:33 and 20:09 when she was acmally
Driving for some period of time during some or a11 of those periods of

' 

tim e
b. KC's totl Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 59 minutes when it was actually
more than 1 1 houzs.

DRW ER TM

55. 9/22/12 a. TM was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 02242 when he was actuallyDriving
and tln-Duty dtlring some or a1l of that period of time.

b. TM  was Off-Dutybetween 16:33 and 00:00 when he was actuallyDriving
and On-Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

c. TM drove a CMV after taking 10 consecutiye hollrs Off-DUty when he
actually drove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty.

d. TM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after com ing On-
Duty when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive houzs after
coming On-Duty.

56. 12/21/12 a. TM  was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 03:22 whenhe was actuallylM ving
and On-Duty during some or a1l of that period of time.

b. 'l'M  was Off-Dutybetween 17:18 and 00:00 whenhe was acmilyDriving
and On-Duty dtuing some or a1l of that period of time.

c. TM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming On-
Duty when he actually did dzive a CMV aqer 14 consecutive holzrs after
coming On-Duty.

57. 3/21/13 a. TM was Off-DUty be> een 00:00 and 02:45 when he was actually On-
Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

b. TM  was Off-Dutybetween 16:21 and 00:00 whenhe was acmallyDriving
arld On-Duty dtlring some or al1 of that period of tim e.

c. TM  drove a CM V after taldng 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty when he
actually drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-DUty.

d. TM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after com ing On-
l7uty when he actually did drive a CNIV after 14 consecutive hours after
coming On-Duty.

'= C
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DRIVER RM
58. 9/19/12 a. RM  was Off-m ty between 00:00 and 04:06 when he was actually

briving and On-Duty dtlring some or a11 of that prriod of time.
b. RM  was Off-Duty between 10:03 and 12:1 1 when he was actually On-
Duty dtlring some or all of that peliod of time.

c. ll.M  was Off-Duty between 17:37 and 00:00 when he wâs acmally
. Driving and On-Duty dtlring som e or a11 of that period of time.

d. RM 's total Driving time was . 10 hollrs and 57 minutes when it was
acttzally approximately l l hours and 55 mùmtes.

e. RM drove a CM V after taking 10 ionsecutive hotlrs OfILD. uty when he
acm ally dzove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive hours Off-m ly.

f. RM did not drive a 0MV after 14 consecutive hours after coming 0n-
Duty when he pctually did drive a comm ercial m otor vehicle after 14
consecutive hotlrs after coming On-Duty.

59. 3/22/13 a. RM was OF-Duty and Off-lluty Driving between 00:00 and 04:12 when
he was actually Driving and On-Duty during som e or all of that period
of Sim e.

b. RM  was OfI--DUt.y Drivlg be- een 09:48 and 09:57 when he was
actually Driving during som e or all of that tim e.

c. RM  was OF-Duty between 09:57 and 12:08 when he was actually On-
Duty during some or all of that period of time.

d. RM  was OF-Duty and Off-Duty Driving between 17:45 and 00:00 when
he was actually Driving and On-Duty dtlring som e or all of that pedod
of time.

e. RM 's total Driving tim e was 10 hours and 58 minutes when it was
actually approximately 1 1 hours and 27 minutes.

f. RM  (Irove a CM V after taldng 10 consecutive hours Off-lluty when he
acmally drove a CM V without talcing 10 consecutive hotu's Off-DUty.

g. llM  did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hottrs after com ing On-
Duty when he acmally did drive a commercial motor veh cle after 14
consecutive hotlrs after coming On-Duty.

DRIVER RL

60. 9/22/12 a. RI, was Off-Duty between 00:00 alld 02:19 when he was acmally Dliving
and On-Dut

.y dtlring some or all of that period of time.
b. Rl,was Off-Dutybetween 15:52 and 00:00 when he was acm ally Driving

. and On-Duty during som e or all of that period of tim e.
. c. RI,'s total Driving time was 10 hours and 52 minutes when it was actually

approxim ately 11 hollrs and 12 minutes.
d. RI, didnot drive a CMV after 14 consecutive hours after coming Ok-buty
when he actually did drive a commercial motor vehicle after 14
consecutive hours after com ing On-Duty.

61. 1/18/13 a. RL was Off-Duty and Off-Duty Driving between 00:00 and 02:24 when
he was actllnlly Driving and On-Duty during some or a11 of that period of
tim e. '
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b. RT, was Off-Duty and Off-Duty Driving between 16:24 and 00:00 when
he was actually Driving and On-Duty during some or al1 of that period of
time. '

c. RT,'s total Driving tim e was 10 hotlrs arld 54 m inutes when it was actually
approximately l 1 hotlrs and 25 minutes. '

d. RI, did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive homs after coming On-buty
' when he actually did drive a com mercial motor vehicle after 1 14

coùsecutive hours after coming On-Duty.

DRIVER DP

62. 9/21/12 a. DP was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 02:57 when he was acttmllyDriving
arld On-Duty dtlring some or a11 of that period of tim e.

1) he was actuallyDrivingb. DP was Off-Dutybetween 16:46 and 00:00 w en
and On-Duty during some or a1l of that period of time.

c. DP's total Driving time was l l hotlrs when it was actually approximately
l 1 hotlrs and 28 minutes.

d. DP did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after comhg On-Duty
when he actually did drive a commercial motor vehicle after 

, 
14

consecutive hotlrs after coming On-Duty.
63. 12/19/12 a. DP was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 04:28 Fhen he was actually '

Driving and On-Duty during some or all of that period of time.
b. DP was Off-Duty between 19:57 and 00:00 when he was actually
Driving and On-Duiy during some or all of that peripd of time.

c. DP's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs apd 57 minutes when it was
acmally approxim ately l l hotlrs and 30 minutes.

d. DP drove a CM V after tnking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty when he
acmally (Irove a CM V without tmking 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty.

e. DP did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hoilrs after coming Onm
Duty when he actually did dtive a commercial motor vehicle after l4)
consecutive hotlrs after com ing On-Duty.

DRIVER GR

64. 12/30/12 a. GR Fas Off-m ty be> een 00:00 and 01:40 when he was actdally ()n-
Duty dlm ng some or a1l of that period of time. '

,

b. GR was Off-Duty Driving between 07:13 and 07:22, between 07:33 and
07:41, and between 08:31 and 08:39 when he was acm ally Driving for
some period of time during some or all of those periods of time.

c. GR was Off-Duty between 07:02 and 07:13, between 07:41 pnd 08:31,
and between 08:48 and 09:30 when he was actually On-lluty for some
period of time duriùg some or a11 of those periods of tim e.

d. GR was Off-m ty be> een 14:57 and 00:00 when he was acmally On-
Dutv durinR some or a11 of that period of tim e. '

; - ' - :e. GR s total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 50 m inutes when it was actually
approximately 11 hours and 15 minutes. :

6,5. 2/6/13 a. GR was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 01 :40 when he was actually On-
Duty during somè or al1 of that eriod of time.
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b. GR was Off-Duty Ddving between 07:38 and 07:44, between 07:51 and
08:1 1, and between 09:09 and 09:19 when he was acm ally Driving for
some peliod of time during some or all of those periods of time.

c. GR wms Off-Duty between 07:25 mld 07:38, between 08:11 and 09:09.
and between 09:25 and 09:59 when he was actually On-Duty for some

11 f those periods of time.period of time during some or a o
d. GR was Off-DUty between 15:11 and 00:00 when he was acmally On-
Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

e. GR's total Drivingtime was 10 holzrs and 46 minutes when it was acttzally
approximately 11 hotlrs and 22 m inutes.

DRIVER CS
66. 9/18/12 a. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 07:24 and 07:30 when he was actually

Driving during some or a11 of that period of time.
b. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 08:35 and 09:17 when he was actually
Driving during some or a1l of that period of time.

c. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 1 1:49 and 12:01 when he was actually
Driving during some or all of that period of time.

d. CS was Off-lluty between 14:50 and 00:00 when he wms actually On-
Duty during some or a1l of that period of time.

e. CS's total Driving tim e was 10 hotlrs and 56 m inutes when it was actually
a roximatel 11 hotlrs and 56 m inutes. . ,

67. 3/8/13 a. CS was Off-DUty Driving between 03:08 and 03:14 when he was acmally
Driving during some or a1l of that peri. od of time.

b. CS was Off-Duty Driving between 08:43 and 09:20 when he was acmally
Driving duting some or a1l of that period of time.

c. CS was Off-Duty Driving be> een 10:26 and 10:35 when he was actually
Driving during some or all of that period of time.

d. CS was Off-Duty between l 6:41 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Duty dtuipg some or a11 of that period of time.

e. CS's total Driving tim e was 10 hours and 49 minutes when it was actually
approximately 1 l hotlrs and 41 m kmtes.

DRIVER RK
68. 9/25/13 a. RK was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 02:32 when hg was acmally Driving

and On-Duty during some or all of that period of tim e.
b. lkK was Off-Duty between 08:44 alld 09:34 when he was actually On-
Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

c. RK was Off-DutyDrivingbetween 09:34 and 10:34 when he was actually '
Driving during some or al1 of that period of time.

d. RK was Off-Duty between 15:01 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Dtzty dtuing some or a11 of that period of time.

e. RI, was On-m ty or Off-Duty betweçn 02:32 and 02:38, between 02:51
and 03:06. and between 08:44 and 09:34, when he was acmally Driving
for some pedod of time during some or al1 of those pqriods of tim e.

f. RK's totalDriving tim e was 10 hotlrs mzd 18 mkmtes when it was actually
approximately 1 l hotlrs and l 8 m inutes.
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69. 9/26/13 a. RK wms Off-W tybetween 00:00 and 02:15 when he was actuallyDriving
and On-Duty dtlring some or al1 of that period of iime. .

b. RK was Off-Duty between 07:45 and 08:49 when he was actually On-
17L11 dtuing some or all of that period of time.

c. RKwas Off-DutylM vingbetween 08:49 and 09:49 when he was acmally
Driving duzing some or a11 of that period of tim e.

' d. ltK was Off-Duty between 15:06 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Duty during some or all of that period of time.

e. RK was On-Duty or Off-Duty between 07:45 and 07:54, between 07:54
and 08:49, between 1 1:20 and l l :41, and between 14:59 and 15:06, when
he was actually Driving for som e period of tim e dtlring some or a1l pf
those periods of time.

f. RK 's total Driving time was 10 hours and 19 m inutes when it was acmally
approximately l 1 holzrs alld 19 minutes.

DRW ER SG
70. 10/21/12 a. SG was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 01:25 when he was actuallyDriving

and On-Duty during som e or all of that period of time.
b. SG wms Off-DutyDriving between 14:53 and 15:19 when he was actually
Driving during some or a1l of that period of tim e.

c. SG was Off-m ty between 15:19 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Duty during some of that period of time.

d. SG's total Driving time was 10 houzs and 53 minutes when it was actually
approximately 1 1 hotlrs alzd 54 mùmtes.

e. SG did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after coming On-Duty
when he actually did dtive a CM V aâer 14 consecutive hours after
com ing On-Duty.

71. 4/14/13 a. SG was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 01:35 when he was acmally Driving
and On-Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

b. SG was Off-Duty between 14:40 and 15:01 when he was actually On-
l7uty during some or al1 of that period of tim e.

c. SG wms Off-Duty Driving between 15:25 and 15:32 when he was actually
Driving during some or a11 of that period of tim e. '

d. SG was Off-Duty between 15:32 and 15:38 when he was actually On-
Duty dming some or a11 of that period of time.

e. SG was Off-Duty Driving be> een 15:38 and 16:00 when he was actually
Driving during some or all of that period of time.

f. SG was Off-m ty between 16:00 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

g. SG's total Driving time was 10 hours and 55 minutes when it was acmally
approximatelk 11 hours and 47 minutes.

h. SG didnot drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after coming On-Duty
when he actually did drive a CM V aûer 14 consecutive hours after
com ing On-Duty.
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DRIVER AM
72. 9/15/12 a. AM  was Off-lluty between 00:00 and 00:53 when he was actually (7n-

Duty dming a11 or som e of that period of time.
b. AM  was Off-Duty Driving between 00:53 and 01:16 when he was
actually Driving during some or all of that period of time.

c. AM was OfFDUI between 01 :16 and 01 :35 when h: was acmally On-
Duty dtlring some or al1 of that period of time.

d. AM was Off-Duty Driving between 01:35 and 01:58 when he Fas
acmally Driving dming some or all of that perioz of time.

e. AM  was Off-lluty between 07:08 and 08:36 when he was actually On-
Duty during some or a1l of that period of time.

L AM 's total Driving time was 10 hours and 48 minutes when it was
acmally approximqtely 1 l hotlrs and 34 minutes.

g. AM did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hottrs after coming On-
Duty when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after
coming On-lluty.

73. 4/25/13 a. AM was Off-m ty between 00:00 and 01:01 when he was acmally On
Dtzty dtlring a1l or som e of that period of time.

b. AM  was Off-Duty Driving between 01:01 and 01:26 when he was
acmally Driving dtuing some or a11 of that period of tim e.

c. AM  was Off-Duty between 01:26 and 01:35 when he was actually On-
Duty during som e or all of that period of time.

d. AM  was Off-m ty between 07:14 and 08:45 when he was actually ()n-
Duty during som e or al1 of that period of time.

e. AM  was Off-Duty Driving between 15:05 and 15:17 whén he was
acm ally Driving during some or al1 of that period of tim e.
M was Off-buty between 15:31 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Duty during som e or al1 of that period of time.

g. AM 's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 58 minutes when it was
actually approximately l l hours and 48 minutes.

h. AM did not drive a CMV after 14 consecutive hours after coming on
duty when he aétually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hom s after
coming on duty.

DRW ER JH

74. 12/18/12 a. JH was Off-iluty between 00:00 and 03:48 when he was actually On=
Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

b. JI-1 was Off-Duty Driving between 03:48 and 04:06 when he was actually
Dliving during some or all of that period of time.

, 
- '

' 

c. JH was Off-m ty between 04:06 and 04:51 when he was actually On-
Duty during som e pr a11 of that period of time.

d. JH was OII--DUty Driving between 04:51 and 05:02 when he was actually
Driving during some or a11 of that period of time.

e. J1I was Of-Duty Driving between l 1:12 and 11:1 8 when he was actually
Driving during some or a11 of that period of time.

f. JI'I was Off-lluty between 17:31 and 00:00 when he wms actually On-
Duty during som e or al1 of that peliod of time.
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' 

g. JH's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 54 minutes when it was actually
imately l 1 hours and 29 minutes. .approx

75. 3/26/13 a. JI-1 was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 03:54 when he was actually On-
Iluty during som e or all of that period of time.

b. JH was OF-Duty Driving between 03:54 and 04:06 when he was actually
Driving during som e or a11 of that period of time.

c. JH was Off-Duty between 04:06 and 04:42 when he was acmally' On-
Duty during some or a11 of that perioL of time.

d. .1H was OII--DUty Driving between 04:42 and 04:50 when he was acmally
Driving duting some or a11 of that period of time.

e. JI-I was Off-DUty Driving between 10:50 and 10:55 when he was acmally
Driving during som e or a11 of that period of time.

f. .TH was Off-DUty between 17:39 and 00:00 when he was actually On-
Duty during som e or all of that period of time. '

g. JH's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 59 minutes when it was actually
a roximatel l l hotlrs and 24 minutes.

76. 12/20/12 a. M B was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 07:01 when she was actually
Driving and On-m ty dming some of tiat peyiod of time.

b. M B was Off-lbty Driving between 19:12 and 19:52 when she was
acmally Driving durhlg some or al1 of that period of tim e.

c. M B was Off-Duty between 19:52 and 00:00 when she was actually On-
Duty during som e or al1 of that period of time.

d. M B'j total Driving time was 10 hollrs and 43 minutes when it was
actually a roximately 1 1 hotlrs and 41 minutes.

DRIVER JC

77. 12/12/12 a. JC was Off-Duty be> een 00:00 and 05432 when he was actually Driving
and On-Dtlty during some of that period of tim e.

b. JC was Off-Duty be> een 17:28 and 00:00 when he was acm ally Driving
and On-Duty during some or al1 of that period of tim e.

c. JC's total Driving tim e was l l hotu's and 21 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 12 hotlrs and 20 mjnutes.

DRIVER RT

78. 12/22/12 a. RT was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 09:04 when he was actually Driving
and OlsDuty during some or all of that period of time.

b. RT was Off-Dutybetween 20:37 and 00:00 when he was actually Driving ,
and On-Duty during some or a1l of that period of time.

c. RT's totalDriving time was 10 hours alzd 59 m inutes when it was actually
approximately 12 hours and 15 m inutes.

d. RT (Irove a CNIV after tnlcing 10 consecutive holzrs Off-Duty when' he
actually drove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty:

e. RT did not drive a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hours after
coming On-Duty when he actually did drive a comm ercial vehicle after
14 consecutive hollrs after com ing On-Duty.

46 1 P a g e
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79. 12/23/12 a. RT was Off-Dutybetween 00:00 and 08:26 when he was actuallyDriving
''' 
. 

'

and On-Duty dlm ng some or a11 of that period of tim e.
b. RT was Off-Dutybetween 18:15 and 00:00 when he was actuallyDriving
and On-Duty dllring some or a1l of that period of tim e.

c. RT's total Drivzg time was 8 hoprs and 41 minutes when it was acmally
approximately 16 hotlrs and 16 minutes.

d. RT drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty when he
actually & ove a CNIV without taking 10 consecutive hollrs Off-lluty.
RT did not drive a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hours after
com ing On-Duty when he actually did drive a commercial vehicle after
14 consecutive hours after com ing On-Duty.

80. 2/20/14 a. RT was Off-Dutybetween 15:41 and 00:00 when he was acm allyDriving
and On-Duty during some or al1 of that period of time.

b. RT was On-Duty or Off-DUty between 02:36 and 02:52, between 06:18
and 07:23, between 08:56 and 09:25, between 12:41 and 12:46, between
12:52 and 13:50 and between 15:22 and 15:34, when he was acmally
Driving for some period of time dllring some or all of those periods of
tim e

c. RT's total Driving tim e was 10 hom's when it was actually approximately
l 1 hotlrs and 13 minutes. '

d. RT did not drive a comm ercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hom's after
com ing On-Duty when he actually did drive a comm ercial vehicle after
14 consecutive hotlrs after com ing On-Duty

DRIVER W B

81. 10/26/12 a. W B was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 06:31 when he was actually
Driving and On-Duty during some of that period of tim e.

b. W B was Off-Duty Driving between 13:24 ahd 14:01 when he was
acmally Driving dtlring some or a11 of that period of time.

c. W B was Off-Duty be- een 14:01 and 23:24 when he was actually
Driving anct On-Duty dtlring some of that period of time.

d. W B's total Driving tim e was 5 hours and 59 minutes when it was actually
a roximately 7 holzrs and 4 minutes.

82. 10/27/12 a. W B was Off-Dlzty between 04:56 and 16:29 when he was acmally
Driving during some or all of that period of time.

b. W B's total Driving tim e without a ten-hour rest period was 15 hours and
54 m inutes when it was actually approximately 24 holzrs and 52 minutes.

c. W B drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty when he
actually drove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty.

d. W B did not drive a comnnercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hottrs after
coming On-Dut

.y when he acmally did drive a commercial vehicle after
14 consecutive hotlrs after coming On-Duty. .

83. l 1/24/12 a. W B was Off-Duty between 05:12 and 15:15 when he was acmally
Driving dtuing some or all of that period of time.

b. W B's total Driving tim e without a ten-hour rest period was 17 hotlrs and
27 m inutes when it was acttlally a roximately 21 hottrs and 15 minutes.

. 

47 j p a g e.

Case 5:17-cr-00007-MFU   Document 1   Filed 03/16/17   Page 47 of 61   Pageid#: 47



c. WB drové a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty when he
actually & ove a CM V without taking 10 consecutive hottrs Off-Duty.

d. W B did not drive a comm ercial vehicle aûer 14 consecutive hotlrs after
coming On-Duty when he actually did drive a comm ercial vehicle after
14 consecutike houzs after coming On-Dut#.

84. 12/21/12 a. W B was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 09:17 when he was acmally
Driving and On-Duty during some of that period of time.

b. W B's total Driving time was 10 hotlrs and 53 minutes when it was
acmally a roxim atel 1 l hotlrs and 10 minutes.

85. 12/22/12 a. W B was Off-Duty Driving between 07:34 ahd 08:34 when he was
actually Driving dtlring some or al1 of that period of time.

b. W B's total Driving time without a ten-hour rest peliod was 19 hours and
59 minutes when it was acmally approximately' 21 hottrs and 16 mùmtes.

c. W B drove a CM V after taldng 10 consecutive hours Off-Duty when he
acmally drove a CMV without taktng 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty.

d. W B did not drivè a commercial vehicle after 14 consecutive hottrs after
coming On-Duty when he actually did drive a commercial vehicle after
14 consecutive holzrs after com ing On-m ty.

DRW ER K:

86. 12/7/12 a. KS was Off-Duty Driving between 00:47 and 01 :17 when he was acmally
Driving dudng some or all of that period of time.

b. KS was Off-Duty Driving between 09:27 and 09:45 when he was acmally
Driking during some or all of that period of time.

c. KS was Off-Duty between 09:45 and 10:48 whèn he wms acmally On-
Iluty during som e or a1l of that period of time.

d. KS's total Driving time without a ten-hom  rest period wms 14 hotlrs and
19 minutes when it was actually approximately 15 hotlrs and 7 minutes.

e. KS drove a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty when he
actually drove a CM V withbut tnking 10 consecutive holzrs Off-Duty.

f. KS did not drive a commercial vehicle after 14 conse'cutive holzrs after
coming On-Duty when he acmally did drive a commercial vehicle after
14 consecutive hotu's after com ing On-Duty.

TM  EDITS

87. 1 1/5/12 On or aboutNovember 5, 2012, TM edited BEAM  TRUCKJNG Driver DP's
electronic Record of Duty Stams for November 2, 2012 to falsely show
that:

< '
a. DP was r ff-Duty Driving'' between 16:43 and 17:04 when DP's
Novqmber 2, 2012 Record of Duty Status originally showed that DP was
actually Dliving dtlrhzg this period of time.

b. DP did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after coming On-Duty
when DP's November 2, 2012 Record of Duty Status originally showed
that DP actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hotlrs after coming

. 
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88. l 1/5/12 On or about November 5, 2012, TM èdited BEAM TRUCIUNG Driver
AM 's electronic Record of Duty Status for Nôvember 3, 2012 to falsely
show that:

a. AM  was ttoff-Duty Driving'' between 00:50 and 01:04 when AM 's
November 3, 2012 Record of Duty Status originally showed that AM was
acttlally Driving dtlring this period of time.

b. AM's tolal Drivtng time was 10 hours and 53 minutes wàen it was
acmally 1 1 hours and l 8 minutes. .

89. 2/19/13 0n or about Febrtlary 19, 2013, 'I'M edited BEAM  TRUCKW G Driver KC's
blectronic Record of Duty Status for Febluary l9. 2013 to falsely show
that:

a. KC was tr ff-Duty Driving'' between 06:39 and 07:01 when KC's
Febraazy l9a 2013 Record of Duty Stam s originally showed that KC was

lly Driving dtu'ing this pedod of time. ractua
b. KU's total Driving time w:s 10 hotlrs and 54 minutes when it was actually
1 1 hollrs and 16 minutes.

90. 4/25/13 On or about April 25, 2013, TM edited BEAM TRUCKW G Driver JM 's
electronic Record of IXIT Status for April 25, 2013 to falsely show that:
JM ''OF-Duty Driving'' between 02:45 and 03:06 when JM '? A'prila. W aS

25 2013 Record of Dtlty Stam s originally showed that JM  was actually!
Drlvina durine this oeriod of time.

, h''''- *''-' '''Lb
. .TM  s total Driving tlm e was 10 hours and 51 minutes when it was actually
l l hours and 20 minutes.

DRIVER K DS
9l. 2/8/17 a. KDS was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 04:21 when he was actu

.
ally ()n-

Duty during some or al1 of that period oi-time.
b. KDS drové a CM V after taking 10 consecutive hollrs Off-Duty when he
acmally drove a CM V without taldng 10 consecutive hotlrs Off-Duty.

c. IQDS did not drive a UM V after 14 consecutive hottrs after coming On-
Duty when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after
coming On- Duty.

92. 2/10/17 a. ICDS was Off-Duty between 00:00 and 05:59 when he wms actually On-
Duty dlzring some or a1l of that period of o'me.

b. KDS did not drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after com ing On-
Duty when he actually did drive a CM V after 14 consecutive hours after
coming On-Duty.

49. In violation of. Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1001, 2(a), and 209.
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CO UNTS NINETY-THREE TO M NETY-

(Falsification of Records in Contemplation of Federal Matter)

50. Paragraphs 1 through 29 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incoporated by

reference as if ftllly set forth herein.

51. On or about the dates set forth below, as to each count, in the W estern District of
. 

'

Virginia and elsewhere, the defendrts, BEAM  BROS. TRUCIGNG  INC., XEAM  BROS.

HOLDING CORPOM TION LLG  GEM LD BEAV  GARLAND BEAM , SHAUN BEAM ,

NICKOLAS KOZEL and others known and unknown to the Fand jury, did knowingly alter,

cover up, falsify and m ake a false entry, nam ely, the driver identifed by his initials, stated that he

worked fewer hours than he acmally worked, in a record or doolment, nam ely, a tim e sheet, as set

forth below, with intent to impede, obstnlct and tnfluence the investigation and proper

administration ofl and in contemplation of and in relation to, any matter within the jurisdiction of

the United States Department of Labor, a department of the United States.

52. On or abbut the stated dates, in the W estem District of Virginia and elsewhere, the
g

defendr ts, BEAM  BROS. TRUCIG NG, INC., BEAM  BRO S. H OLDING CORPOM TION

LLG GERM ,D BEAV  GARLAND BEAM , SHAUN BEAV  NICKOLAS KOZEL, and

others lcnown and llnknown to the grmzd jury, (l) were members of a conspiracy as described in

Count Two of this indictment, (2) the offense of falsification of records in contemplation of a

federal m atter was committed or was caused to be com mitted by a member of and during the

conspiracy, (3) the member of the conspiracy committed or caused the offense to be committed

while a member of and during the conspiracy, and (4) the pffense was committed in furtheroce

of the conspiracy.

Count Bi-W eelkly Tim esheet Pay Roll Driver
Period Dates On or About

93 2/3/2013 - 2/16/2013 ' TB

j0 I p a ge
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94 10/28/2012 - l 1/10/2012 CW

95 1/6/2013 - 1/19/2013 KC

96 l 1/25/2012 - 12/8/2012 RI-

97 1/6/2013 - 1/19/2013 RM

98 12/9/2012.- 12/22/2012 TM

99. l l/l 1/2012 - l 1/24/2012 .1M

53. In violation of Title l8, United Sutes Code, Sections 1519, 2(a), and 204.

COUNTS ONE H UNDRED TO ONE H UNDRED AND SLX

(False Statements)

54. Param aphs 1 through 29 of this lndictment ax'e re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

On or about the dates set forth below, as to each count, in the W estern District of

Virgiuia and elsewhere, the defendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCKING INC., BEAM BROS.

HOLDING CORPOM TIONLLG GERAT,D BEAM, GART,AND BEAV  SHAIJN BEAV

NICKOLAS KOZEL, and others known andlmknownto the grandjum  willfully andluzowingly,

made and used any false writing and doolment, namely, a time sheet, as set forth below
, lmowing

the snme to contain any materially false, fctitious, and hauduleqt statement and ently  nnm çly, the

driver identitied by his initials stated that he worked fewer hours th= he actually worked
, in a

matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the Uzlited Statesa

nnmely, the United States Depnrtm ent of Labor, as set forth below .

56. On or about the stated dates, in' the W estern District of Virginia and elsewhere,' the

defendants, BEAM  BROS. TRUCKING  lNC., BEAM  BROS. HOLDING CORPOM TION

LLG GERAT,D BEAM, GARLAND BEAM , SHAUN BEAV  NICKOLAS KOZEL, and

others known and ''nknown to the grand jtuy, (1) were members of a conspiracy as describey in
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Count Two of this indictment, (2) the ofense of making and using a false record was committed

or was caused to be committed by a member of and dtlring the conspiracy, (3) the member of the

conspiracy committed or caused the offense to be committed while a member of and during the

conspiracy, and (4) the oflknse was committed in furtherance of the conspiracy,

Count Bi-W eekly Timesheet Pay Driver
Roll Period Dates
On or About

100. 2/3/2013 - 2/16/2013 TB

loj.. 10/28/2012 - l 1/10/2012 CW

1/6/2013 - 1/19/2013 KC102
.

103. l 1/25/2012 - 12/8/2012 R1,

104. 1/6/2013 - 1/19/2013 RM

105. 12/9/2012 - 12/22/2012 TM . '
I

106. 11/1 1/2012 - 11/24/2012 .TM

57. In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1001, 2(a), and 24$.

cotm'r oNE HtlxoltEo AND SEU N

(Conspiracy to Commit W ire Fraud)

58. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 29 of the i.ndictment are re-alleged

mzd incorporated by reference as if set out in 1 11.

59. Beginning as early as in or about Jtme 1999. the exact date being llnknown to the

Grand Jut'y, and continuing to on or about the date of this indictment, in the W estem District of

Virginia and elsewhere. the defendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCIGNG lNC., BEAM BRUS.

HOLDING CORPORATION LLC, GERAT,D BEAV  GARLAND BEAM , SHAIJN BEAM ,

ICKOLAS KOZEL, did knowingly and willfully conspire. combine, conltderate, and agreeN

together and with each other and with other individuals both known and unknown to the Grand

Jury, to cgmmit wire fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343, that is to
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. f

devise and intend to devise a scheme to degaud the United States Postal Serdce CKUSPS'') alzd

drivers employed by BEAM  TRUCKW G and to obtain money and property bymeans of false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations and promiseà, and kansmitted and caused to be transmitted

b f wire in interstate comm erce mzy writings, signs'
, signals pictures and sotmds for they means O , a y

PX OSC Of executing Such scheme.

The Schem e and Artilk e to Defraud

60. The defendants and their co-conspirators cnnied out the objects of the conspiracy by

various m eans, at various times, including:

a. Representing and promising in mail contracts and renewal contracts Cmail

contracts'') that BEAM TRUCIUNG would comply with all applicable fedeial,

state and local laws and regulations and wollld faithfully discharge a1l duties

and obligations imposed by such laws and regulations, including the FM CSA

Safety Regulations, the FM CSA HOS safety regulations, all speed lim its, and

the SCA/FLSA, even though the defendants h>d no intention of complying with

these requirements at the tim e they made the representations and promises as

well as during the life of the mail contracts.

b. Concealing âom  the USPS prior to the award of the m ail conkacts the fact that

BEAM TRUCKING had not èomplied with a11 applicable tederal, state and

local laws and' regulatiops and had not faithfully discharged a1l duties and

obligations imposedby such laws and regulations, includingthe FM CSA Safety
' . 

:Regulations; the FM CSA HOS safety regulations
, al1 speed limits, and the

SCA/FLSA and its goveming regulations, thereby depriving the USPS of vital

information that it would have considered ill deciding whether to award m ail

conkacts to BEAM  TRUCKW G or one of its competitors.
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c. Defrauding the USPS of (1) USPS money paid to BEAM TRUCIUNG tmder

the mail conkacts; (2) USPS'S intangible property right to award mail conkacts

to fully qualifed motor cnrriers; (3) USPS'S intangible property right to control

USPS money and assets as it saw fk; (4) USPS'S intangible property right to

conduct a fair bidding and contracting process, and (5) USPS'S intangible

propezty right to control its risk of loss.

d. After gaudulently obtaining USPS m oney and property through false prom ises,

representations and öm issions, failing to pay the BEAM  TRUCKW G CM V

ddvers as required mzder the SCA/FLSA and the mail contracts.
, 

'

e. Concealing the pay requirements of the SCN FLSA and the m ail contracts from

BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers.

f. Aiding, abetting, encolzraging, requiring and permking BEAM TRUCIUNG

CM V drivers to falsifytheir tim e sheets and theirrecords of duty status to report

fewer hotlrs worked than they actually worked, in violation of the SCN FLSA

and the mail contracts.

g. Aidiné, abetting, encouraging, causing and requiring BEAM TRUCKING

CM V drivers to falsify their time sheets to report fewer hotlrs worked than they

acmally worked by instructing the drivers that their time sheets should màtch

X d the m' ai1the false records of duty status in violation of SCA/FLS an

contracts.
1

' h. r. alsely and fraudulently representing to BEAM  TRUCIUNG CM V dzivers that

they were entitled to be paid only for a pre-set ftxed amount of time, often

referred to as ççstandard hotlrs,'' for completing a trip/route, even if the trip/route

took more time to complete than the <'standard hotlrsy'' and even when the
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dzivers were paid less than they were entitled to be paid tmder the m ail contrqcts

and the SCA/FLSA.

Falsely and fraudulentlyrepresenting to BEAM  TRUCIU NG CNIV drivers that

they were permitted only to report Rstandard hours'' on their time sheets eken

when the actual hours were greater.

Telling BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers that they would not.be paid for short

rest periods, for tim e remaining ill readiness to operate a CM V. for time waiting

for their trailers to be loaded or unloqded at postal fqcilities, for tim e spent

assisting or superdsing the loading or tmloading of their trailers at postal

facilities, for tim e waiting at a relay location for the nrrival of another driver,

and for the time dtlring m echanical breakdowns, weather delays, accid
, 
ent

I 1

delays, and traflk delays.

k. Preventing BEAM  TRUCKW G CM V drivers who were awm'e of the pay

requirements of the mail contracts and the SCA/FLSA, as well as BEAM

TRUCIUNG'S practice of paying drivers less than required under the

SCA/FLSA, from sharing that information with other dzivers, DOL, DOT, and

any other government agency in an effort to conceal the ongoing scheme and

conspiracy.

Creating an ROver Hours List audit progrnm''

reported on their tim e sheets m ore time than the Rstandard hotlrsy'' and

contacting these ddvers to convince them to report the Ktstandard hom s'' or less

that identised drivers wào

time on future time sheets to conceal the fact that BEAM  TRUCKJNG CM V

drivers were being underpaid and driving in violation of the FM CSA HOS

safety regtllations and the SCA/FLSA.
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m . Failing to inform the BEAM  TRUCKW G employees responsible for

implementing the Over Hours List audit program how the BEAM TRUCIGNG

CM V drivers were requimd to be paid tmder the SCA/FSLA and the mail

contracts.

n. Directing the BEAM TRUCKW G employees responsible for implementing the

Over Hotlrs List audit program to implem ent the program to pay BEAM
. i

TRUCKm G cM v drivers in violation of the SCA/FSLA and the mail

conkacts.

o. Failing to review and consider BEAM  TRUCKING CM V drivers' requests for

additional pay.

p. Failing to pay BEAM  TRUCIGNG CM V drivers as required tmder the

SCA/FLSA and mail conkacts.

Overt Acts

61 . In furtherance of the conspiracy, mld to effect the objects thereof, the following overt

acts, am ong others, were com mitted in the W e'stern District of Virginia, and elsewhere.

62. Each facmal allegation of Counts One Hundred and Eight throug,h One Hundred gnd

Twentp Five of this indic% ent are re-alleged and incop orated by referencé as if fully set forth

herein, and each allegation separately constitmes an overt act in ftzttheru ce of the conspifacy

charged in this Cotmt.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Seétion 1349.
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COUNTS ONE H UNDRED AND EIGH T TO
ONE H UNDRED AND TW ENTY-FIW

(Wire Fraud)

64. Paragraphs l through 29 and the factual allegationj of Count One Hlmdred and Seyen
' 

j

(WiTe Fraud Conspiracy) of this Indic% ent describing the scheme and artifce to degaud are re-
%
1

alleged and incop orated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

65. On or about the dates set forth below, as to each colmt in the W estern District of

Virginia, and elsewhere, the defendants, BEAM  BROS. TRUCIGNG  lNC., BEAM  BROS.

HOLDING CORPOW TION LLG GEM LD BEAV  GARLAND BEAM, SHAUN BEAM,

M ckotAs KoZEL, and others lmown andunknown tq the grandjury, didu owingly, andwith

ltent to degaud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud, and to obtain money

and property from the USPS and BEAM  TRUCKW G CM V drivers by m eans of mnterially false

and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing that the pretenses,

representations and promises were false and fraudulent when made.

66. On or about the stated dates, in the W estem Distriqt of Virginia and elsewhere, the

defendants. BEAM  BROS. TRUCKG G  lNC., BEAM  BROS. HOLDING CORPOM TION

LLG  GERAT,D BEAM , GARLAND BEAM , SHAIJN BEAM, M CKOLAS KOZEL, and

others lcnown and lmknown to the grand jury, (l) were members of a conspiracy as described in

Colmt One Hundred and Three of this indictment, (2) the offense of wire fraud was committed or

as caused to be committed by a member of the conspiracy dtlring the conspiracy $) the memberW

of the conspiracy committed or caused the offense to be comm itted while a member of and dlzring

the existence of the conspizacy, and (4) the offense was committed in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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USE OF THE W IRES k

67. On or about the dates set forth as to each count below, irl the W estern District of

Vizginia, and elsewhere, and for the pmpose of executing the scheme and artifice to degaud

desclibed in Count One Hundred and Seven (Wire Fraud Conspimcy) of this lndictment, and

attempting tp do so, the defendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCM NG INC.,, BEAM BROS.

HOLDINGCORPOM TIONLLG GEM LD BEW  GARLAND BEAM, SHAUNBEAV

NICKOLAS KOZEL, and others known and lmknown to thq grandjury, caused to be transmitted

by means of wire commtmication in interstate comm erce, certain writings. signs, signals, and

solmds described below for each count, each transmission constittlting a separate count:

Count Date Nature of W ire
On or About

108. 3/27/15 BEAM  TRUCKING Email & Attaclzm ents from  M otmt
Crawford, VA to U SPS in M aryland, transmitting docum ents
related to VSPS Renewal Contract 240M  including
RTRANSPORTATION SERVICES RENEW AL CONTRACT
FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' signed by GEM LD BEAM .:

109. 6/23/14 BEAM TRUCKING Email & Attachments 9om Motjnt
Crawford, VA to USPS in M aryland, tro smitting doctlmelks
related to USPS Renewal Contract 207M  including
Z'TRANSPORTATION SERVICES IIENEW AL CONIRACT
FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' signed by GERALD BEAM .

l 10. 3/29/12 BEAM TRUCKW G Email & Attachments from M otmt
Crawford, VA to USPS in W ashington, D.C., lansmitting
docum ents related to USPS Renewal Contract 233L5 including
'TRANSPORTATION SERVICES RENEW AL CONRR ACT
FUR REGULAR SERVICE'' signed by GERALD BEAM.

l 1 1. 10/6/1 l BEAM TRUCKING Email & Attachments 9om M otmt
Crawford, VA to USPS in Maiyland, transmitting documepts
related to USPS Contract 192M 8 including
RTRANSPORTATION SERVICES PROPOSM  ' &
CONTM CT FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' apd
''ADDENDUM  TO TERM S Ar  CONDITION S'' signed by
GERALD BEAM .

l l2. 8/19/1 1 BEAM TRUCKING Email & Attachments from M otmt
Crawford, VA to USPS in Maryland, transmitting documents
related to USPS Contract 274Y 1 including
'QTRANSPORTATION SERVICES PROPOSAL &
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CON TM CT FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' siN ed by
GER M ,D BEAM .

1 13. 5/12/11 BEAM TRUCKING Email & Attachments 9om M ount
Crawford, VA to USPS inpMarylynd, transmitling documents
related to USPS Renekal Contract 240AE including
RTRANSPORTATION SERVICES RENEW AL CONTM CT
FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' signed by GERALD BEAM . '

l 14. 4/21/1 l BEAM TRUCKW G Email & Attachments from M otmt
Crawford, VA to USPS in Maryland, transmitting docume:ts
related to USPS Renewal Conkact 011L1 includiùg
KTRANSPORTATION SERVICES RENEWAL CONTRA/T
FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' signed by GEM LD BEAM .

1 15. 4/6/1 1 BEAM TRUCIUNG Email & Attacllments from M otmt
Crawford, VA to USPS in Texas, transmitting documepts
related to USPS Contract 300ZE including
RTRAN SPORTATION SERW CES PROPOSAL &
CONTRACT FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' sir ed by
GERALD BEAM .

l l6. 4/4/1 1 BEAM  TRUCKW G Email & Attachm ents from M ount
Crawford, VA tö USPS in M aryland, transm itting documents
related to USPS Renewal Contract 275L6 including
RTRANSPORTATION SERVICES RENEWAL CONTRA/T
FOR IIEGIJLAR SERVICE'' signed b GEM LD BEAM .

l 17. 9/7/10 BEAM  TRUCKING Email & Attachments 9om M ount
Crawford, VA to USPS in W ashington, D.C., transmittipg
documents relgted to USPS Renewal Contaqt 208L5 including
'T RANSPORTATION SERVICES PROPOSM  &
CONTRACT FOR REGULAR SERVICE'' sir ed by
GART,AMD BEAM .

l l8. 5/22/09 BEAM  TRUCKW G Em ail & Attachments sent 9om M otmt
Crawford, VA to USPS in New York, transmitting doctlments
related to USPS Renewal Contract 10423 including
''TRANSPORTATION SERVICES RENEWAL CONTRA/T
FOR REGULAR SERW CE'' signed by GERALD BEAM . .

119. 2/15/2013 TB's faxed K'BI-W EVKLY TIM E SHEET'' for Pay Period
2/3/2013 2/16/2013,' Faxed 9om Georgia to Mopnt
Crawford, Virgzia

120. 1 1/24/2012 JM 's faxed HBI-WEEICLY TIME SHEET'' for Pay Period
l 1/11/2012 - 11/24/2012; Faxed 9om Georgia to M ount
Crawford. Virginia '' '

121. 1/21/2013 KC's faxed RBI-W EEKLY TIM E SHEET'' for Pay Period
1/6/2013 1/19/2013,' Faxed 9om Georgia to Motmt
Crawford, Virginia

122. 12/8/2012 RL's faxed QGBI-W EEIU=Y TIM E SHEET'' for Pay Period
l 1/25/2012 - 12/8/2012,' Faxed 9om W est Virginia to M otmt
Crawford, Virginia
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123. 1/20/2013 lkM 's faxed 'CBI-W EEKLY TIME SHEET'' for Pay Periqd
1/6/2013 - 1/19/2013,' Faxed 9om W est Virginia to M ount
Crawford, Virginia

124. 12/24/2012 TM 's faxed GBI-W EEKI,Y TTME SHEET'' for Pay Period
12/9/2012 - 12/22/2012,' Fr ed 9om North Carolina to Motmt
Crawford, Virginia '

125. l 1/10/2012 CW 's faxed Z'BI-W EEKIY TIM E SHEET'' for Pay Period
10/28/2012 - 11/10/2012,. Faxed 9om Kentuclty to M ount

. Crawford, Virginia

68. In violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Sections 1343, 2(a), alzd 29$.

COUNT ONE HUNDRED AND TW ENTW SLX

(Conspiracy to Engage in Monetary Transactions in
Property Derived from Speçifed Unlawful Activity)

69. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 29, and the factual allegations of

Count One Hundred and Seven (Wire Fraud Conspiracy) and Counts One Htmdred and Eight

lleged àndthrough One Htmdred and TwentpFive (Wire Fraud), of the indictment are re-a

incorporated by reference as if set out in 1 11.

70. Beginning as early as in or about Jtme 1999, the exact date being Imknown to the

Grand Jury, and continuing to on or about the date of this. indictment, in the W estem District of

Virginia and elsewhere, the defendants, BEAM BROS. TRUCM NG  lNC., BEAM  BROS.

HOLDING CORPOM TIONLLG GEM LD BEAV  GARLAND BEAM, SITXIJN BEAV

and NICKOLAS KOZEL, did willfully and lmowingly conspize to violate Title l8, United St>tes

Code, Section l957(a), that is, to lçnowinjly engage, attempt to engage, cause, and aid and abet

others to engage, within thè United States, in monetary tansactions in criminally derived propprty

of a value greater than $ 10,000 derived from specilied tmlawflll activity, that is, wire frauct in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

ln violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 19561).
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NO TICE O F FORFEITURE

72. i Upon conviction of one or more of the felony offenses alleged in tllis lndictment,

the defendant shall forfeit to the United States:

a. Any property, real or personal, which constitutes or is derived from proceeds
traceable to a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections, 1343, and/or

1349, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sectiön, 981(a)(1)(C) and Title
28, United States Code, Section, 2461(c).

b. Any property, real or personal, involved in a violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section, 1956 and 1957, or any property traceable to such property,

plzrsuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section, 982(a)(1).
' N  .

' 73. 
' The property to be forfeited to thç United States includes but is not lim ited to the

following property:

a. M onev Judcm ent

Not less than $ 40,000,000.00 tForty Million Dollars) in United States currency
and a11 interest and proceeds traceable thereto, in that such sllm in aggreggte
was obtained directly or indirectly as a result of said offenses or is traceable to
such property.

A TRUE BILL this 16th day of M arch, 2017.

s/ çrtz'n,tt- ïuvy Tovqpevson
FOREPERSON

c
:td

.î

jRICK A
. M OUNTCASTLE

ACTING UNITED STATES ATTOM EY
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